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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

mERE

For the year ended 30 June

BEAAZTHLEE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

—E-NE —ZT-N\F —ZT—tF E-RFE ZE-aF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FEr FET FEr

Revenue Wz 282,037 270,195 302,987 291,207 289,413

Income tax expense FremiFs 8,754 6,429 11,097 10,065 4,628

Profit for the year FAREF 32,252 9,017 36,781 43,270 16,816

Profit for the year attributable to P/NCTE 2N
owners of the Company e F = 32,252 9,017 36,781 43,270 16,816
As at 30 June
RAB=1+H

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

“E-hE —ZT-)N\F T—tF —T-—RF T—HF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FEr FEr FEr FEr

Total assets BEE 341,924 335,498 190,241 263,334 239,511

Total liabilities Haml 42,710 45,808 62,976 59,381 53,794
Equity attributable to RARRERBA

equity holders of the Company e 209,214 289,690 127,265 203,953 185,717
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

This year was a challenging year for Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”)
as the trade war between the United States of America (the “USA”) and
the People’s of Republic of China (the “PRC") has adversely affected
the global economy and political instability was taking a toll on various
industries and sectors in Hong Kong.

Under the complex and uncertain macroeconomic environment in
2019, for the printing industry, increasing manufacturing cost and
more stringent environmental requirement imposed by the PRC
Government have inevitably led to conservative investment sentiment
and decline in growth rate. Furthermore, because of the USA-Sino trade
war, companies operating in the PRC have been relentlessly struck.
Although printing industry is not bearing the brunt, widespread trade war
concern has weakened export of products from the PRC to USA, let
alone the spending forecast on printing and promotion.

The Group’s 2019 profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company amounted to HK$32,252,000 (2018: HK$9,017,000). The
increase in the profit was mainly attributable to the absence of listing
expenses and the stringent cost control policies being adopted during
the year. Basic eamning per share was HKB.72 cents (2018: HK2.07
cents). The Company has proposed a final dividend of HK2.5 cents
(2018: HKB.0 cents). Together with interim dividend of HK1.0 cent
(2018: Nil), the Company has proposed a total dividend of HK3.5
cents (2018: total dividend of HK3.0 cents), which the Group intended
to maintain a stable dividend retun to reward the shareholders of the
Group and to reflect our confidence in our strong financial position.
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Looking forward to the Year 2019-2020, we expect the market will
not retumn to steady in the short term under the threat from the trade
war and uncertainties over the global economy. To cope with the
abovementioned challenges and adapt to the ever-changing market
demand, the Group will further devote resources and manpower to
boost the operating effectiveness internally and will fully grasp the
opportunities arising from potential new markets for sustainable growth.
In the meanwhile, the Group will strive to adopt more stringent cost
control policies to minimize wastes in all aspects, thereby enhancing the
Group’s production efficiency.

While minimizing production cost to lift our efficiency internally, we are
proactively looking into the market for the latest printing associated
technologies and materials to provide value-added services to our
customers. We will carry on to seek for the advanced technologies in
the market in the foreseeable future.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my sincere gratitude to
our shareholders, investors, business partners, management and all the
staff members for their increasing support and dedication to the Group.
We will continue to provide the market with innovative and high-quality
printing products and adopt the most stringent controls and adaptable
strategies to drive the Group’s business development in the long term.
This will enable us to achieve better results and create greater value for
customers, investors and Shareholders.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 18 September 2019
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~ ON PAPER-RELATED

PRINTING PRODUCTS
EmlUiEREDR RSB E

Products are mainly used in the markets of various
consumer products as well as for the purposes of
promotion, advertising and education.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWE DN

REVIEW OF OPERATION

Sun Hing Printing Holdings Group is a one-stop printing service
provider. Our printing services can be broadly categorised into (i)
packaging printing services which cover, among others, corrugated
boxes, gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes; (i) booklet printing
services which cover, among others, instruction manuals, hardback
books and booklets; (i) card printing services which cover, among
others, colour cards, insert cards, warranty cards and plain cards; (iv)
[T technology printing services which cover, among others, Near-field
communications (‘NFC") tags, Radio-frequency Identification (‘RFID”)
labels and Real QR code; and (v) other printing services which cover,
among others, stickers, colour papers, yupo papers, red packets and
paper bags.

The printing industry is facing intense competition. In addition to the
rising raw material costs and labor costs, and stringent environmental
protection policies implemented by the government of The People’s
Republic of China (‘PRC”), the above factors pose challenges to the

Group’s business operations.
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REVIEW OF OPERATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 4.4% to
approximately HK$282.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2019
compared to last year. The increase of the Group’s revenue is mainly
due to the increase in contribution from booklet printing. The gross profit
also increased by approximately 11.7% from approximately HK$90.5
million for the year ended 30 June 2018 to approximately HK$101.1
million for the year ended 30 June 2019, as a result of the increase in
revenue.

Following the increase in revenue and the decrease in paper costs,
our gross profit margin also increase from approximately 33.5% during
the year ended 30 June 2018 to approximately 35.9% during the year
ended 30 June 2019. Our profit for the year increased by approximately
HK$23.3 million from approximately HK$9.0 million for the year ended
30 June 2018 to approximately HK$32.3 million for the year ended
30 June 2019, as a result of the absence of listing expenses; and the
stringent cost control policies being adopted during the year. The net
profit margin increased from approximately 3.3% for the year ended 30
June 2018 to approximately 11.4% for the year ended 30 June 2019,

Basic eamings per share for the year ended 30 June 2019 was HKB.72
cents, compared to a basic earnings per share of HK2.07 cents for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

i
[
]
oy
4
3
X
P
=2k

¥EKOE )
HEZZ-NFARA=ZTHIEFE  AEEHKE
B EFEIRINMAA%EL282 0B EHBTT - NEBU
WD EBHRREEZMEORIOEELIN - EF)
MEBE - N\FEXA=1THIEEHOSAEE
BTN N 79EBRE_E-AENA=THIL
FEAIBEBIT  EFE NI EZHARE
KB e

S I8 N R ARARA AR PR 1% - BAFIMEFE IR
HE-_Z—\FNA=Z+THILFELHBSHLEFAZE
HE-_Z-—NFANA=ZTHILFEL35.9%  FRX
HABEEE-E - N\FARNAZTHLEFENI0E
BB 3EEBTEHE_T—NF A
=+ HIEFEANRIEEBIT VAR E LT
X 0 RERNREERE R A SIECE o 455K B
BT \FRNA=ZTHLFEH3INENEE
ECE-AENAZHALERELHI1.4% o

HE-_Z-NFEAZTHILFESREART A
.72 mMBEZ—ZE—N\FNA=ZtTHLFES
FREARZF AN AE2.07784 -

cC M K
/17 177 71



TR
B
]
oy
<
3
X
S
=24

BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW EREBENHE
The Group comprises five key business units (2018; five). AEBRAR(ZZ—NA\F : AT EEKEMA
B o

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2019

BE-Z-NAFAAZTHLFENREER

Package Printing £22£ E[J 7

Booklet Printing 2 ENf

Card Printing + & ENf

IT Technology Printing &2 3% 41 EN
Other Printing £ 4 ENI

64.4%

3.6%

Revenue contribution for the year ended 30 June 2018
BE-ZT-\FXRA=THLEENRZER

Package Printing ‘2% ENf

Booklet Printing 2 NI

Card Printing - ENffl

IT Technology Printing £ & 34 EN Rl
Other Printing E b NI

70.2%

10.9%

4%
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BUSINESS UNIT OVERVIEW (continued)
Packaging printing

Packaging printing services cover, among others, corrugated boxes,
gift boxes, card boxes and product boxes. For the year ended 30 June
2019, revenue from packaging printing decreased by approximately
4.2% to approximately HK$181.7 million as compared to approximately
HK$189.7 million for the year ended 30 June 2018. The decrease in
revenue from packaging printing was mainly due to the breakout of
trade war between China and the United States of America (the “USA”)
during the year, which our customers has been more cautious and
conservative on the spending on promotion and package.

Booklet printing

Booklet printing services cover, among others, instruction manuals,
hardback books and booklets. For the year ended 30 June 2019,
revenue from booklet printing increased by approximately 57.0% to
approximately HK$55.1 milion as compared to approximately HK$35.1
million for the year ended 30 June 2018. The increase in revenue
from booklet printing was mainly due to increasing customers orders
received on booklet printing.

Card printing

Card printing services cover, among others, colour cards, insert
cards, warranty cards and plain cards. For the year ended 30 June
2019, revenue from card printing increased by approximately 3.4% to
approximately HK$30.5 million as compared to 2018,

IT Technology printing

[T Technology printing services cover, among others, RFID labels and
NFC tags, in order to provide value-added services to our existing
and potential customers. For the year ended 30 June 2019, the
Group recorded the revenue of approximately HK$4.6 million from T
Technology printing services with a decrease of approximately HK$0.5
million as compared to 2018.

Other printing

Other printing services cover, among others, stickers, colour papers,
yupo papers, red packets and paper bag. For the year ended 30 June
2019, revenue from other printing decreased by approximately 6.5% to
approximately HK$10.1 milion as compared to 2018,
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OUTLOOK

The Year 2018/19 was challenging due to the breakout of the trade war
between China and the USA, which had an adverse impact on market
sentiments and clouded global economy. Furthermore, volatility of raw
material costs, increase in labour costs, and the imposition of various
stringent environmental control requirements in China also posed
additional challenges to the Group’s business operations and growth in
the future.

To cope with the abovementioned challenges, and to maintain the
market competitiveness of the Group, the management has taken
various steps to mitigate the Group'’s operational risk, such as a better
control over our manufacturing costs in order to make our printing
products to be more competitive in the market and be cautious on
the pricing of our printing products, especially on the impact of trade
tariff to be imposed by the USA. In addition, our Group explores
opportunities on promoting the technology printing services to our
customers, which can differentiate ourselves from others. With the
Group’s experienced management team and reputation in the printing
industry, our management believes the Group is well-equipped to face
the forthcoming challenges and to maintain sustainable growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 4.4% to
approximately HK$282.0 million for the year ended 30 June 2019
compared to approximately HK$270.2 million for the year ended 30
June 2018. The increase of the revenue is mainly due to the increase in
revenue contribution from booklet printing.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

Gross profit increased by approximately 11.7% from approximately
HK$90.5 million for the year ended 30 June 2018 to approximately
HK$101.1 million for the year ended 30 June 2019, as a result of the
increase in revenue.

Following the increase in revenue and the decrease in paper costs, our
gross profit margin increased from approximately 33.5% during the year
ended 30 June 2018 to approximately 35.9% during the year ended 30
June 2019.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses remained relatively stable of approximately
HK$59.0 million and HK$58.4 miillion for the years ended 30 June 2019
and 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses was approximately HK$4.6 million and
approximately HK$4.2 million to the years ended 30 June 2019 and
2018 which mainly included salaries and freight charges. Selling and
distribution expenses increased was mainly because of increase in the
freight charges for delivering the finished goods to our customers.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Other operating expenses, net

Other operating expenses was approximately HK$0.2 million and
HK$0.3 million for the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 which
mainly include exchange gain or loss.

Other income

Other income was approximately HK$2.4 million for the year ended 30
June 2018 and increased to approximately HK$3.6 million for the year
ended 30 June 2019. The increase in the amount was mainly due to
the increase in the interest income generated from time deposits made
during the current year.

Listing expenses

In the prior year, the Group recorded listing expenses of approximately
HK$14.4 million in connection with the preparation for the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). No such expenses was
incurred during the year ended 30 June 2019.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense increased by approximately HK$2.4 million from
approximately HK$6.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2018 to
approximately HK$8.8 million for the year ended 30 June 2019. The
effective tax rates for the year ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are
21.3% and 41.6%, respectively. For illustrative purpose, without taken
into account the one-off listing expenses, the effective tax rates for the
years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018 are relatively stable at 21.3% and
21.5%, respectively.

Liquidity and capital resources

Our net assets amounted to approximately HK$299.2 million and
approximately HK$289.7 million as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018
respectively. The increase in net assets was primarily due to the profit
generated from the operation during the current year.

The Group derives its working capital mainly from cash and cash
equivalents and net cash generated from operating activities. The
directors expects that the Group will rely on the interally generated
funds and unutilised net proceeds from the listing of the shares of
the Company on the Stock Exchange on 16 November 2017, in the
absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and capital resources (Continued)

As at 30 June 2019, our cash and bank balances amounted to
approximately HK$186.1 million (30 June 2018: approximately
HK$190.7 million); and our net current assets were approximately
HK$235.5 million (30 June 2018: approximately HK$226.5 million).
The current ratio, being current assets over current liabilities, was
approximately 6.5 and 6.0 as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had approximately HK$186.1
million total cash on hand, of which approximately HK$11.4 million
was restricted cash and denominated in Euro. For the remaining
approximately HK$174.7 million, approximately HK$62.5 million was
denominated in Hong Kong Dollars, approximately HK$102.7 million
was denominated in US Dollars, and approximately HK$9.5 million
was denominated in Renminbi. The Group's cash in US Dollars and
Renminbi was held to support its core operational needs. In addition,
the Group had approximately HK$155.0 million of fixed time deposits
and wealth management products with maturity within 12 months.
For the fixed time deposits and wealth management products,
approximately HK$52.0 million was denominated in Hong Kong Dollars,
approximately HK$97.3 million was denominated in US Dollars and
approximately HK$5.7 million was denominated in Renminbi,

As at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018, the Group did not have any
interest-bearing bank borrowings, and thus the computation of the
gearing ratios were not applicable as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June
2018.

During the year, the Group recorded over HK$10.8 million in capital
expenditure, which was mostly deployed for automation and equipment
upgrades.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE
OF ASSETS

The Group did not have any material contingent liabilities and did not
pledge any assets as at 30 June 2019 and 30 June 2018.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has no significant events after the reporting period up to the
date of this report.

OUR EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As at 30 June 2019, we had 822 employees in Hong Kong and
the Mainland China. During the peak season namely from June
to September for each year, in order to maximise our production
capacity, we expand our employees for production, who are principally
responsible for certain post-press processes and packaging which
have to be done manually and cannot otherwise be achieved by
automatic machines.

Our direct labour cost, including salaries, bonuses and other
employee’s benefits, amounted to approximately HK$29.3 million and
approximately HK$27.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2019 and
2018, respectively. Remuneration packages are generally structured
by reference to market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries and
wages are normally reviewed annually based on performance appraisals
and other relevant factors.

DIVIDEND

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per share in
cash. The proposed final dividend is subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. These,
together with an interim dividend of HK1 cent (2018 Nil) per share
paid in March 2019, will make a total dividend of HK3.5 cents (2018:
HK3 cents) per share for the current year. The proposed final dividend
is expected to be distributed on Wednesday, 18 December 2019 to
shareholders whose names appear on the Register of Members of the
Company on Monday, 9 December 2019.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the initial public offering were HK$124.0 million after
deducting all the direct costs associated with the Listing.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had used approximately HK$24.8
million for equipment upgrades on the improvement of the production
process, approximately HK$8.3 million for general working capital and
approximately HK$0.2 million for the consultation of the upgrade of
enterprise resources planning (‘ERP”) system. During the year, the net
proceed, have been used for the purpose consistent with the section
headed “Future Plan and Use of Proceeds” as set out in the prospectus
of the Company dated 2 November 2017 (the “Prospectus’).

Details of the allocation of the net proceeds, and the utilisation of the net
proceeds as at 30 June 2019 are set out below:

B RIEAE
Mk FMERBNREEERAR  BRAAREE
8 IB R A1240A88 BT ©

RZE-AFRA=+H AEECEBLH2488
BAET  #83EHETLN0CAERTYBIAR
RELETFZREH - —REEESRITRE
ZERRB([ERP]) R  FA - ISR
FHEOREARFERR - E—tF+—AZEW
R ER([ARER]) Pr# [ RAE 8 R AAEHOR
Rk | — 8RR MEE A -

RZZE-AFARA=TAH - AERIEFEN DI
BARAERBFENSABERETILT

Actual usage Unutilised net

Percentage of Planned up to proceeds as at
Intended application of the net proceeds total proceeds  applications 30 June 2019 30 June 2019
RZB-NF
EREHE BE-E-hF RA=TH
BN RAZTHN  REBAWEASE
SRR RENRNER BAL FEAR ERAR NEFH
% HKS$ in million HKS$ in million HK$ in million
BEER BEAR BEAT
Purchase four presses by stages 65.0 80.6 24.8 50.8
AERBEENA R
Relocate Shenzhen Factory 260 31.0 - 310
wERIEE
Upgrade ERP system 3.3 4.1 0.2 3.9
FTERPE S
General working capital 6.7 8.3 8.3 -
—MEELSE
Total 124.0 33.3 90.7
fst
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USE OF PROCEEDS (Continued)

On 10 January 2017, the Group have entered into a legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU”") with an independent third
party (the “New Landlord”). Pursuant to the MOU, we have the right to
lease, and the New Landlord shall lease to us, for three years (with an
option to renew granted for us for further three years), some of the area
as our new plant (the “New Plant”) within the piece of land located at
Xiagang Community, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(PEARAMBFERE REMEMALER) for industrial use.

However, the New Landlord has sold the land together with the New
Plant to an independent third party, and hence there is a delay for the
relocation plan and the Group may not be able to relocate the factory as
originally scheduled as mentioned in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Please refer to the “Voluntary
Announcement — Business Updates” dated 11 July 2018 for details.

On 3 June 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
leasing and relocation of the Group’s Shenzhen Factory to the new
plant.

According to the Cooperation Framework Agreement, an Independent
Third Party (the “Developer”) shall develop and construct factory, office
building, staff dormitory and utilities (the “New Properties”) on a piece of
self-owned industrial land located in Huizhou City (E/1 ) in the PRC.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, it is expected that the
negotiating, finalising and signing of the Tenancy Agreement would take
place by the fourth quarter of 2021, a separate Tenancy Agreement to
lease the New Properties shall be entered into between the Developer
and the Group after negotiation and obtaining the approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

The Company will make further announcement(s), as and when
appropriate, in relation to the status of the construction and leasing
of the New Properties, the Cooperation Framework Agreement and
the relocation plan of the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the “Voluntary Announcement — Business Updates”
dated 6 September 2019 for details.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CEEARE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance practices and procedures. The corporate
governance principle of the Company emphasizes on accountability
and transparency and is adopted in the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. In addition the Company will strive to continuously
improve these practices and cultivate an ethical corporate culture.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the code provisions as set out on in the
Code of Corporate Governance (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 1o the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). The Company has
complied with all the applicable code provisions in the CG Code since
30 June 2018 up to the date of this report.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is composed of
7 directors, of which 4 are Executive Directors and 3 are Independent
Non-executive Directors. All the Independent Non-executive Directors
have appropriate professional qualifications, experience or related
industry expertise. The Directors’ biography and relevant relationships
amongst them are set out in the Directors’ and Senior Management's
Profiles section under Report of the Directors on pages 54 to 58 of this
Annual Report.

Review will be made regularly by the Board to ensure that it has a
balance of skills and experience appropriate for the requirement of
the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Also, a balanced
composition of Executive Directors is maintained to ensure
independence and effective management. The Company has satisfied
the Listing Rules in having one of the Independent Non-executive
Directors with appropriate accounting qualifications and expertise to sit
in the Audit Committee.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 and
Appendix 16 (12B) of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view
that all Independent Non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are independent
in accordance with the terms of the guidelines. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent.

Independent Non-executive Directors are identified in all corporate
communications. An updated list of the Directors identifying the
Independent Non-executive Directors and the roles and functions of the
Directors is maintained on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

When selecting potential candidates for directors, skills, experience,
expertise, their devotion of time, potential conflicts of interests are key
factors of consideration. The Nomination Committee was set up to
make recommendations to the Board on the selection and nomination
of candidates for directorship. Majority of members of the Nomination
Committee are Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Board is accountable to shareholders and is responsible for the
formulation of the Group’s strategy, overseeing the management of the
business and affairs of the Group.

Key and important decisions are fully discussed at the board meetings.
All Directors have been fully consulted about any matters proposed for
inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated the responsibility
for drawing up the agenda for each board meeting to the Company
Secretary. With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman
seeks to ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meetings and receive adequate and reliable information in a
timely manner.

Board meetings are scheduled to be held at regular intervals. The Board
would meet more frequently as and when required.

All the Directors are covered by the Director's & Officer's Liability
Insurance, which is also part of our best practices.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES (Continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the board meetings since 30
June 2018 up to the date of this report is as follows:

BEESARNREEEER 2

B \FRA=TREREERREAN &
FHFEEESR LB T

Attendance
Board meetings
HER
Exggs
Executive Directors HITES

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang FREAE A 3/3
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PR ER S A 3/3
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRAEBASEAE 3/3
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PREHESTE 3/3

Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RITLEE 3/3
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis RiGHERAE 3/3
Mr. Ho Yuk Chi {CIE=05 =t 3/3

Notice of at least fourteen days is given to the Directors for regular
meetings, while Board papers are sent to the Directors not less than
three days before the scheduled date of a board or board committee
meeting. The Directors can attend meetings in persons or through
other means of electronic communication. The Company Secretary
ensures that the procedure and all applicable rules and regulations are
strictly and fully complied with. Minutes of board meetings and board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are
available for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by
any Directors.

Directors have full access to information on the Group and are able to
obtain independent professional advice whenever necessary.

EHeRAR A TNARESELEN  ME
FeNHERESERESTEEeeR/RIT4HRA
RN R =HXE2EE - EFAHA B BEM
BEFBEMAREEERE - AANERREREEE
TEERFUALRMBEEAREILERN E288E

REZZEQER LR CHBARIWERE - T
MEFREAASERHEIT L ESEBAE - 98] &
Blekacss o

EFEN AN BHAEEER  XHEETERRIRE
B ERER -

20 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED #f®ENRI#ZERABRA T / Annual Report £ 3 2018/ 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR
DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director will meet with other Directors and
key management executives, and will receive a comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment.
Subsequently, he will receive briefings and other professional
development necessary to ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the operations and business of the Company and he is fully aware of
his responsibility with the Company.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are also invited to participate in the Company events to familiarize
themselves with the operations of the Company and create opportunity
to communicate with other management members of the Company.

The records of training as received by each Director for the year ended
30 June 2019 are summarized as follows:

J/J-_\‘ 'M\Aiﬁﬂ:

ES2EIIRXE

%%ﬁ&ﬁ%ﬂ%éﬁﬁﬁﬂ%%&zﬁ
> YHREENER

BEEITBAE®
AEREE  EAREMN

BEHESI - ﬁ{é : f)i‘ZHﬂ%ﬂJFﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁ#&&Em
BEERE) - BEREHARARSEREHERE

TR WERABERARRZEE -

ARARBEEBEFT2ARFETXERIEIIAER
REN B IXEE - BREE TRMIAMTEZE
ﬁTiTé%AT’Eﬁ B EEEBEBEADRE

&) - LAAEARRRIENE - ThAIER S BEAR QT B A
BEIENEER -

iﬁ*)'lzuafﬁﬂi ﬁDT

Type of trainings

EHER
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang PREAE ST A B
Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin PRASER S A B
Mr. CHAN Chi Ming PRAEAFSEAE A B
Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond PREHSTE A.B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIYFHTES
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry RtkE A B
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis RAEtER A A B
Mr. HO Yuk Chi feIgn e e 4 A.B

A attending corporate events/site visits
B: reading materials relating to general business, regulatory updates
on listing rules and board practices
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY AND
DUTIES

The Board is responsible for performing the duties on corporate
governance functions as set out below:

0] developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance;

(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

(i) reviewing and monitoring the Company's policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(v) reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Chairman
of the Audit Committee is the person to be notified for securities
dealings by Directors and a designated form is used for notification and
acknowledgement purpose.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, their compliance with the required standards of dealings and
its code of conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction since
30 June 2018 up to the date of this report and there was no event of
non-compliance.

Senior management of the Company is also required to comply with the
guidelines on similar terms as set out in the Model Code.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company places great importance on internal control and risk
management to safeguard the assets of the Company and the interests
of shareholders. The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The Audit Committee
assists the Board in meeting its responsibilities for maintaining an
effective system of internal control. The Audit Committee reviews the
process by which the Group evaluates its control environment and risk
assessment process, and the way in which business and control risks
are managed through the assistance of the Company's Internal Control
Consultant.

The Internal Control Consultant assesses risk exposure, formulates
audit plan and ensures that the audit programs cover key internal control
areas of operating subsidiaries on a rotational basis for the review by the
Audit Committee.

The Internal Control Consultant reports her findings and
recommendations to management of the Company and the Audit
Committee. The Internal Control Consultant also monitors the follow-
up actions agreed upon in response to her recommendations and
reports to the Audit Committee the progress of implementation of those
recommendations.

With the assistance of the Audit Committee and the Company's Internal
Control Consultant, the Board is satisfied that the overall financial,
operational and compliance controls, and risk management of the
Group continues to be effective.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Group. The Directors ensure that the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The statement of the auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set out in the
Independent Auditors” Report on pages 70 to 72 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the auditors of the Company
received approximately HK$1,337,000 (2018: HK$1,272,000) for
their audit service. Non-audit service which covered taxation service
provided to the Group was approximately HK$80,000 (2018:
HK$76,000) in the same year.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises 2 Independent Non-executive
Directors and 1 Executive Director. They are Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Ho Yuk Chi and Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang.
The Committee’s authority and duties are set out in written terms of
reference which are posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

The policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and the
senior management were reviewed by the Committee. Remuneration,
including basic salary and performance bonus. Annual salary
adjustment and performance bonus are subject to review and approval
by the Committee.

No individual directors and senior managers are allowed to determine
his or her own remuneration.

The Committee met once since 30 June 2018 up to the date of this
report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.
During the year, the works performed by the Committee included the

following:

- the review of the performance and remuneration packages of
directors and senior management; and

- the review of the remuneration policy of the Group.

24 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED % ®EDRIEZERAGBRA T / Annual Repc

ort

BT &
BEZZT-NFXNA=THILFE N2 RLEERD
PLEAZ R U EN 471,337, 00078 7T ( —ZF— )\ 5 :
1,272,000 7T)  FF - RmAEBEREE 2 FZ
HR CRERERTS) 49/580,0008 T (ZF— N\
1 76,00087T) °

FMEES

FHZEEaMEBE L NTEER —RNTES
MR DRlARERELE(ZEEER) AHE

ERREESE - REGZBENBEHN EER
REBERN - MEBERNAR R R PTEE

EZNEREEABZMBFMERREBHZE
Bge - FMeREAHE RRREA - FEFH
TRBMRIIEAMZE B2 JUE -

ZFH

ZEgRB T \FARA=THRREEALRR
SRHMBIT-REHR AARBEERBHERE
100% °

RAFE  ZESRTHITEREATEA:

— EHEFELRERAEERNRERFHEF
&

— EHAKEOHHEE -

e 2018/ 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises 1 Executive Director, Mr.
Chan Peter Tit Sang (Committee Chairman) and 2 Independent
Non-executive Directors, Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry and Mr. Ho Yuk
Chi. The defined terms of reference of the Committee are set out in
writing and are posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Committee is responsible for making recommendation to the Board
for selection and nomination of directors, and the succession planning
of directors and senior management. The Committee also reviews
the size, structure and composition of the Board with reference to the
Company's board diversity policy and assesses the independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Committee met once since 30 June 2018 and up to the date of this
report with a 100% attendance by all Committee members.

During the year, the works performed by the Committee included the
following:

- the recommendation of the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting;

- the review of composition of the Board; and

- the assessment of independence of the independent Non-
executive Directors.

The Board adopted the board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board to enhance
quality of its performance. The policy aims to achieve diversity through
the consideration of a number of factors including but not being limited
to skills, regional and industry experience, background, age, race,
gender and other qualities. These differences will be taken into account
in determining the optimum composition of the Board. All Board
appointments are based on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and
experience, and taking into account diversity.

The Nomination Committee will report annually on the composition of
the Board under diversified perspective, and monitor the implementation
of this policy to ensure its effectiveness. It will discuss any revisions
that may be required and recommend such revisions to the Board for
consideration and approval.
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NOMINATION POLICY

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out
the selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and
appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure that the
Board members have a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group’s business.

The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability
and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed candidate,
including but not limited to the following:

° Reputation for integrity;

° Accomplishment, experience and reputation in the business and
industry;

° Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest;

. Compliance with the criteria of independence, in case for the
appointment of an independent non-executive director, as
prescribed under Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange;

° Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service; and

° Any other relevant factors as may be determined by the
Nomination Committee or the Board from time to time as
appropriate.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedure for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings. During the year ended 30 June 2019, there was no change
in the composition of Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure the effectiveness of the Nomination Policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required
and recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises 3 Independent Non-executive
Directors. They are Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Committee Chairman),
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis and Mr. Ho Yuk Chi. The defined terms of
reference of the Committee are set out in writing and are posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include reviewing the
effectiveness of Company's internal control and the Company's internal
audit function, risk management system and regulatory compliance, the
review of the Company's financial information and compliance, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and removal of
external auditor and assessing its independence and performance.

Since 30 June 2018 and up to the date of this report, the Committee
held two meetings and the attendance records are as follows:
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HER

Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry B 2/2
Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis KL 2/2
Mr. HO Yuk Chi AIERE k4 2/2
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

The works performed by the Committee during the year included the
following:

- reviewing with the auditor on key audit and accounting matters,
and updates on regulatory rules in the auditor's Audit Committee
Report and the draft audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 30 June 2019

- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2019 focusing on business highlights, any change of accounting
policies and practices, and compliance with accounting
standards and listing rules requirements

- reviewing with the auditor the scope of their audit, their
communication plan, their independence, developments
affecting the Company’s business, their risk assessment and
updates of accounting standards and listing rules as affecting the
Company for the financial year ended 30 June 2019

- reviewing the audit plan, audit progress report and significant
audit findings with management at all committee meetings

- reviewing with management on implementation of the
recommendations on intermal control made by the Internal Control
Consultant

reviewing the risk management and interal control of the Group

The Committee is satisfied with the review of the work of external
auditors, their audit fees, results of their audits and has recommended
to the Board their re-appointment for the financial year ending on 30
June 2020 at the forthcoming annual general meeting ("“AGM”).

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company. A decision to declare and pay
any dividends would require the approval of the Board and will be at
their discretion. The Board may from time to time determine and pay
to the Company's shareholders such interim dividends as it considers
appropriate. The Board may recommend the payment of final dividends
which are required to be approved by shareholders of the Company in
general meetings.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company recognizes the importance of communication with
the shareholders of the Company, both individual and institutional as
well as potential investors. The Company adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring that shareholders are
provided with timely information about the Company and enabling them
to engage actively with the Company and to exercise their rights in an
informed manner.

The AGM also provides a good opportunity for communication between
the Board and shareholders. The Executive Chairman of the Board, the
Chairman of the respective Committees as well as the external auditors
are normally present to answer questions as raised by shareholders.
Notice of the AGM and the related circular are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days before the meeting.

Votes of the shareholders at general meeting will be taken by poll in
accordance with the Listing Rules. Detailed procedures for conducting
a poll will be explained to shareholders at the beginning of the general
meeting to ensure that shareholders are familiar with the voting
procedures. Each issue will be proposed by a separate resolution by
the Chairman of the general meeting. The poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange on the same
day of the general meeting. Each general meeting, other than an annual
general meeting, shall be called an extraordinary general meeting
("EGIM).
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to

convene EGM

- An EGM shall be convened on the requisition of one or more
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
(the “Eligible Shareholder(s)”) having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.

- The requisition must state clearly the names of the Eligible
Shareholders concemed, specify the objects of the meeting, and
be signed by the Eligible Shareholders concerned. The Eligible
Shareholders must prove their shareholdings in the Company to
the satisfaction of the Company.

- The requisition will be verified with Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office of the Company and upon their
confirmation that the requisition is proper and in order, the Board
will convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in accordance
with the requirements under the Articles to all the registered
Shareholders. On the contrary, if the requisition has been verified
as not in order or the Shareholders concerned have failed to
deposit sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses for
the said purposes, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be
advised of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call
for an EGM.

- If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
(Continued)

Procedures and right for shareholders to
convene EGM (Continued)

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to move new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law (Revised) of Cayman
Islands. However, pursuant to the Articles, shareholders who wish to
move a resolution may by means of requisition convene an EGM.

Specific enquiries and suggestions by shareholders can be sent in
writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company's
registered office. Shareholders are encouraged to access to the
Company website at http://www.sunhingprinting.com for all relevant
information including Company’s announcements, press releases,
financial highlights, the Company’s constitutional documents and
detailed procedures for shareholders to convene meetings.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has a proactive policy for promoting investor
relations and communications by maintaining a regular dialogue
with investors and other stakeholders. The Company’s website at
http://www.sunhingprinting.com also features a dedicated Investor
Relations section to facilitate communication with shareholders and
investors. Corporate information and other relevant financial and non-
financial information are made available electronically and in a timely
manner.
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SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

The Group is pleased to present its environmental, social and
governance (‘ESG”") report (the “Report”) to all its stakeholders. The
content contained herein focuses on providing an overview of the
ESG performance of its major operations in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC") and Hong Kong from 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 (the
“Reporting Year”). This also facilitates the Group to conduct thorough
performance review and evaluation to enhance its overall performance
results in the future. The Reporting Year coincides with its financial year.

Scope of the Report

This report covers the reporting period from 1 July 2018 to 30 June
2019, and has been prepared in accordance with the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide” in Appendix 27 to the
Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Report summarizes our ESG performance during the
Reporting Year, and covers our management policies, mechanisms
and measures in place during the Reporting Year with respect to
environmental protection, emission reduction, safe workplace,
staff training and drills, supply chain management and community
investment and engagement. Focuses are placed on certain aspects
closely relevant to our shareholders and other stakeholders, with our full
commitment to sustainable development of the Group as a whole.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group would like to achieve the following goals on setting the
environmental, social and governance policies:

1. To minimize the burden of the environment
2. To identify and prioritize the environmental and social issues
3. To foster the innovative culture

4, To respond to major crisis and market changes in a timely
manner

5. To safeguard human rights and social culture
6. To actively engage stakeholders in the decision-making process
7. To nurture and empower our employees

8. To support the local community
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental

We regarded sustainability as the cornerstone of our corporate culture,
SO ingraining environmental and socio-economic considerations into our
decision-making processes was of utmost importance.

The culture of environmental protection is widely adopted throughout
our Group, especially in water conservation and pollution alleviation.
The conservation concept integrates into different production cycles,
from choosing raw materials, machines to production. It is inevitable
that during the production process, greenhouse gases and harmiul
waste will be produced. Taking this into consideration, with the goal and
determination to minimize the negative impact, we formulated policies to
continually improve our environmental performance.

As the operations in our PRC factory account for approximately
99% of our total emissions, hence in our last year ESG Report, we
disclosed only the environmental data of our PRC factory in Section
A. However, although the environmental impact of our Hong Kong
office was regarded as immaterial, starting from this Reporting Year,
the management of the Group decided to disclose the environmental
performance of the Hong Kong office for comparison since next year, so
that we could better understand our overall impact on the environment,
and take meaningful actions to reduce our environmental impact in the
future,

During the Reporting Year, there was no material non-compliance issue
with relevant laws and regulations related to the environment.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (Corinued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions

Air Emissions

We have implemented eco-friendly measures to reduce carbon
footprint in our business operations. By continuing our effort in achieving
energy efficiency, we successfully reduced the air emission in our PRC
factory by approximately 31%, from 820,000g in FY2018 to 569,000g
in FY2019.
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Qur emissions of air pollutants, which include nitrogen oxides (‘“NOX’),
sulphur oxides (“SOx") and respiratory suspended particles (‘RSP”),
were mainly generated from the transportation of raw material from our
suppliers, finished product to our customers and daily operation in the
factory. Our emissions of air pollutants in the Year 2017/18 and the
Reporting Year are illustrated below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Air Emissions (Continued)

During the year, we have redesigned the transportation route to make
it more efficiently and used the more environmental-friendly fuel, so as
to reduce the carbon emissions. To conclude, we had successfully
reduced NOx, SOx and RSP emission by approximately 31%, 32% and
31% respectively.

For our Hong Kong office, the air emission for the Reporting Year was
approximately 6 kg, the air emission was mainly generated from the use
of vehicles. The components of the air emission were illustrated below.

We would continue to record our air emission in Hong Kong Office and
to make comparison in next year for taking steps to make improvement
in the future.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas (‘GHG”) Emissions

GHG emissions are the main culprits of global warming. In the light
of reducing GHG emissions, we embrace in driving green practices
in our day-to-day operations. We are committed to environmental
conservation, natural resource saving and waste reduction.

The GHG emissions by the Group were mainly released from usage of
refrigeration (commonly known as refrigerants), fossil fuel consumption
by vehicles, electricity consumption, electricity used for fresh water
and sewage processing by the responsible authorized government
departments, and also business air travel by employees. Our PRC
factory produced approximately 23,080 tonnes of carbon dioxide
equivalent emissions during the Reporting Year; and details are
ilustrated as below.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND

GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)
Greenhouse Gas ("“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

The emissions of greenhouse gases are classified into three separate
scopes as shown in the above charts, the details of emissions of the

three scopes are shown in the below table.

Scope Emission Sources

gE BERRIR
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Emissions (in tonnes)
BERR (LAWEET)
Year 2018/19
(Reporting Year)
—E2-N/—-hE Year 2017/18
(BEFE) —T—+/—N\F

1 Emissions from Fossil Fuel Consumption 162 238
R BRI ERE R BERL
Emissions from the use of refrigeration 18,100 18,100
R A RSB HERT

2 Emissions from Electricity Consumption’ 4,802 4,354
R EE BRI

3 Emissions from Water and Sewage Processing? 15 12
R B BRIRK 57K HERL2
Emissions from Employee Business Air Travel 1 Nil
R E & B BT mZE Z RV HERT i

Total 23,080 22,704

et

Although the total GHG emissions increased slightly by 2% when
comparing with the Year 2017/18 due to the increased consumption of
electricity and water, we will continue to formulate environmental-friendly

measures to alleviate our environmental impact.

The carbon emission of Shenzhen Power Supply Co.,Ltd. (“RIIEE B
BBRAF]") was taken as 0.79 kg CO2e/KWh for both the year 2017/18

and the Reporting Year.

2 For fresh water processing, the unit electricity consumption was taken as
0.60 kWh/m?® in the PRC for both the year 2017/18 and the Reporting
Year. For sewage processing, the unit electricity consumption was taken
as 0.28 KWh/m?e in the PRC for both the year 2017/18 and the Reporting
Year. The territory-wide default value of purchased electricity was taken as

0.80 kg/kWh in the PRC.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas ("“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

When considering the emission intensity, as the details of each batch
of production can be different, it is hard to define the emission intensity
as emission per production batch. Moreover, it may not be applicable
to calculate the emission intensity per dollar of revenue, because the
procedures, as well as the potential emissions, for every product type
can be different, and thus the emission for each dollar of revenue varies
according to the product design. As such, the intensity is calculated as
per facility, i.e. the factory, our emission intensity was 23,080 tonnes
of carbon dioxide equivalent emissions per facility during the Reporting
Year. We would continue monitoring the total GHG emissions in the
factory for taking any reasonable steps in the future.

For our office in Hong Kong, the GHG emissions during the Reporting
Year was amounted to 68 tonnes. The GHG emissions in Hong Kong
office was mainly generated from fossil fuel consumption by vehicles
(Scope 1)3, electricity consumption (Scope 2)*, and electricity used for
fresh water and sewage processing by Water Supplies Department and
Drainage Services Department (Scope 3)°, as illustrated below.

By estimating the travelling distance based on the units of fuel
consumed by the vehicles, using the “Transport — Energy Utilization
Index” issued by Electrical and Mechanical Services Department at
https://ecib.emsd.gov.hk/en/indicator_trp.htm.

4 The carbon emission of Hong Kong Electric was 0.80 kg CO2e/kWh for
the year 2018.

o

For fresh water processing, according to the 2017/18 Annual Report of
Water Supplies Department, its unit electricity consumption was 0.577
KWh/m?®. As until the preparation date of this report, there has been no
updated data provided yet, the unit electricity consumption in 2017/18
was taken as a reasonable estimation for the data in 2018/19.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)
Section A: Environmental (Continued)
Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas ("“GHG”) Emissions (Continued)

AT :

RE - HEREREE

BiE HEREREE®)

RIREHE )
BEA1 : (&)
BERB(LREREE M (E)

GHG Emissions in Hong Kong Office (in tonnes)
ERNSEENBEZEREBEEK (LG

Scope 1
#E1

Scope 2
FHE2

Scope 3
#E3

We would continue monitoring the GHG emissions in Hong Kong office,
and make comparison from next year for better understanding of our
environmental impact and making improvement in the future.

Harmful Waste Management

During the production process, waste water and ink emission may
cause impact to the environment. The Group has installed a CTP
sewage treatment system, which can effectively filter out and purify the
harmful substances during the production process. The sewage water
can be safely discharged into the river without harming the ecosystem
after the application of CTP sewage treatment system.

All the harmful chemical materials are handled and disposed by licensed
chemical collector. All of the waste discharge levels including harmful
and non-harmful waste were monitored by the Finance Department.

For sewage processing, according to the Sustainability Report 2017/18 of
Drainage Services Department, its unit electricity consumption was 0.31 KWh/m?®
in the Year 2017/18. As until the preparation date of this report, there has been
no updated data provided vet, the unit electricity consumption in 2017/18 was
taken as a reasonable estimation for the data in 2018/19.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A1: Emissions (Continued)

Harmful Waste Management (Continued)

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a total of 11 tonnes
of harmful waste, which increased by approximately 3% when
compared with Year 2017/18. Although we cannot drastically reduce
our production of harmful wastes during our production process due
to industry limitations, we encourage our employees to utilize the
resources, so as to reduce unnecessary wastage. Moreover, we have
engaged a licensed chemical collector to handle and dispose those
harmful wastes, for the sake of reducing our negative impact on the
environment.

Non-Harmful Waste Management

The non-harmful waste generated by the Group were mainly paper,
packaging ribbon, iron and plastic. In order to reduce the production
of non-harmful waste, the Group upholds the 3Rs principles, namely
reduce, reuse and recycle. For example, excessive packaging material
were reused for the next production or recycled for other uses. In
addition, the Group also tried to make an accurate prediction on the use
of raw materials in production process before placing purchase order so
as to reduce unnecessary waste.

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded approximately 3,221
tonnes of non-harmful wastes, in which around 98% were recycled,
only 2% were disposed at landfills.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A2: Use Of Resources

Flectricity Consumption

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s total electricity consumption
was approximately 6,124,381 kWh, with around 99% was consumed
by the Group's PRC factory. The electricity consumption of the PRC
factory increased slightly by 10% when compared to the Year 2017/18,
due to the increase in production volume. We will continue to upgrade
the machines and equipment into more energy efficient options, such
as LED lighting and appliances with grade 1 energy label. We are
committed to monitor consistently on the electricity consumption of our
office and factory. And we would continue to strive for reducing our
electricity consumption in the future.
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° The electricity usage of Hong Kong Office in the Year 2017/18 was not
recorded. Comparison of the electricity usage of Hong Kong Office will be
made in our next ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A2: Use Of Resources (Continued)

Water Consumption

The Group’s water consumption during the Reporting Year was
approximately 21,654 m?, in which nearly 100% was attributed to the
operations in the PRC factory. Traditionally, printing should be a water-
intensive industry, nevertheless, with our forward-looking policies,
we bought new machines that deployed waterless printing for saving
water. Although with an increase in production volume, which caused
our water consumption in the PRC factory increased by around 25%,
we are still optimistic and committed to further bringing down water
consumption in the future.
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Packaging Material
As the Group's operations involve no packaging materials, no disposal
of related products or packaging materials can be identified.

7 The water consumption of Hong Kong Office in the Year 2017/18 was not
recorded. Comparison of the water consumption of Hong Kong Office will
be made in our next ESG Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section A: Environmental (Continued)

Aspect A3: The Environment And Natural Resources

The Company believes that corporate development should not come at
the expense of the environment.

During the Reporting Year, the Group had invested approximately
HK$772,200 in environmental-friendly facility to reduce our negative
impact on the environment. The facility is currently in use for purifying the
air emissions of the Group. The Group may consider investing on more
environmental-friendly facilities in the future if there are suitable options
in the market.

We are committed to continuously improving our ESG performance
because we think it is crucial to our long-term success as a business.
As for our efforts made on environmental protection, we are pleased
to report that there was no material non-compliance issue regarding
relevant laws and regulations for the Reporting Year.

Section B: Social -
Practices

Aspect B1: Employment
QOur Group believe that the success of the Company relies on the
contribution and support from our talented employees. Our human
resources policies and procedures, including recruitment, probation,

Employment And Labour

termination, promotion, retirement, transfer, appraisal, working hours,
salary, bonus, entitled leave and medical benefits, comply with the
relevant legislation in Hong Kong and Shenzhen.

As at 30 June 2019, we had 822 employees, in which male comprised
52% and female comprised 48%. Our employees spread over a
wide range of age group from 18 to over 65. Guided by the non-
discrimination principle, we offered same opportunities to all employees
regardless of their age. Among our employees, over 16% of them
contributed for the Group over 10 years. It indicated that most of the
employees were loyal to the Group due to our mature human resources
policy and trustful relationships.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section B: Social - Employment And Labour
Practices (Continued)

Aspect B1: Employment (Continued)

Printing is a traditional business, and the staff turnover rate is high in
this industry. As a result of our friendly human resources and happy
working environment, our staff turnover rate was approximately 3% for
the Reporting Year, which was same as last year. Our turnover rate for
senior and middle management was approximately 1.5% and 1.5% for
the Reporting Year and last year, respectively. We will take all measures
to combat the challenge of attracting and retaining talented workforce.
We care our employees, and we are in the process of enhancing our
human resources system, which employees are able to empress their
opinion on the platform anonymously.

For the Reporting Year, the Group has fully complied with the statutory
requirements in Hong Kong and PRC, including the Companies
Ordinance, the Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance, Inland Revenue
Ordinance, the Minimum Wages Ordinance, the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance and other relevant rules and regulations.

The management regularly reviews the Group’s remuneration and
benefits policies with reference to the market standards and is
committed to safeguarding the rights and interests of the employees.
Remuneration and benefits have been adjusted on an annual basis in
accordance with the employees’ individual performance, contribution
and market conditions.

Promotion decisions are made based on careful consideration of job
responsibilities together with each individual's qualifications, relevant
experience and performance, conduct and potential with the Group.
Promotion and salary increment are rewarded to all contributing staff.

The Group strives to build a harmonious and inclusive working
environment, free from any harassment and discrimination. The Group
promotes understanding and awareness of Non-Discrimination, Anti-
Harassment and Non-Bully Policies by communicating these in the
team meetings and in the human resources policy. The Group strives
to ensure equal employment opportunity for all employees, regardless
of their race, colour, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation, national
origin, citizenship, disability, marital status or any other characteristics
protected by law. The Group’s equal employment opportunity policy is
applicable towards recruitment, training and development, recognition
and reward, and termination and dismissal. The Group prohibits the use
of any child labour and forced labour.

For the Reporting Year, the Group has not found any material non-
compliance with laws and regulations in respect of the labour
standards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section B: Social - Employment And Labour
Practices (Continued)

Aspect B2: Health And Safety

Qur Group used a systematic approach to safeguard the health and
safety of our employees by identifying and mitigating the potential office
safety risks and equipping with sufficient fire precaution equipment.
Safety procedures have been included in the staff handbook for
guidance. Employees must report to their supervisors immediately if
there is any accident.

Our Group provided induction trainings to our staff regarding the
responsiveness to emergencies. The training encompassed a wide
range of topics, including anti-terrorism training, fire safety, dangerous
goods management, protective apparatus management, and safety
production knowledge. Apart from the induction training, we also
organised regular training to strengthen mind-set of employees on
safety issues.

For the Reporting Year, there were 9 people involved in work related
injuries, and a total of 162 hours of lost working hours were recorded.

Aspect B3: Development And Training

Qur Group provides internal training session to all the newly joined staff,
so that they can understand the vision and mission of the Company.
On-job trainings were provided to all employees so that they can
understand the latest technology on color printing. For Reporting Year,
our Group provided trainings to 1,745 staff, and the total training hours
were 8,864 hours.

Aspect B4: Labour Standard

Respecting human rights has been an integral part of the Group's
approach to sustainability. The Group fully complies with labour laws
and other relevant legislation that prohibits child labour and forced
labour. The Group does not employ any person below the age of
eighteen at its workplace. Any violence, with the purpose of deliberately
causing difficulties, threats and/or corporal punishment, forcing
employees to work is prohibited. The Group strives to ensure that no
employee is forced to work against his/her will, or work as forced labour,
or be made subject to corporal punishment or coercion of any type
relating to work. The Group regularly reviews its employment practice to
ensure that are in full compliance with the Employment Ordinance and
other regulations related to child labour and forced labour.

For the Reporting Year, there was no material non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations in relation to labour standards.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section B: Social - Operating Practices
Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

Establishing a successful and beneficial relationship with supplier
was one of our objectives. We formed strategic alliance with our
suppliers, so that we can obtain the raw material with best quality
and at a reasonable price. We cooperated with 41 suppliers, which
a geographic distribution of 31 in the PRC, 9 in Hong Kong and 1 in
Taiwan.

Qur Group assessed the supplier based on several criteria, including
the aspect of operation flow control, management hierarchy, quality
control, material control, environmental control, energy conservation
policies. As product quality was always our top priority, we only
pick those suppliers who can fulfil our requirements and service
commitment. We closely monitored the performance of our suppliers to
ensure it is consistent with its service commitment.

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

Product Safety

The Group is committed to providing products and services with high
standard of quality and reliability. We have been awarded the following
certificates:

° certificate of “Good Manufacturing Practices”
° ISO9001: 2015 “Quality Management System Certificate”

o The international Council of Toy Industries-Code of Business
Practices

The Group strictly adheres to the applicable laws and regulations
relating to product/services responsibility in Hong Kong such as Sale
of Good Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws of Hong Kong) and
Consumer Goods Safety Ordinance (Chapter 456 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

For the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any material non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to product
responsibility.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section B: Social - Operating Practices
(Continued)

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility (Continued)

Customer Complaints

The Group has adopted a set of customer communication policy as
the Group places huge importance on the customers’ feedbacks.
Moreover, customer complaints are of greatest concern to our Group.
We will follow up the complaints closely and middle and senior
management will also be involved to resolve the customer complaints.
For the Reporting Year, we had 2 cases of complaints, which all of
them have been resolved in a timely manner. For the Reporting Year,
the Group was not aware of any material legal dispute and customer
complaints in Hong Kong.

Intellectual Property Right

The Company acknowledged the importance of intellectual property
rights. For the customer's design and intellectual property, the Group
takes all practicable steps and measures to ensure that data collected
from the customers are well protected and at all times.

The Company applied RFID, NFC and Real QR Code technology to
collect information for marketing initiatives. To address the confidentiality
issue regarding recipient information, all the information was stored in
the cloud service.

For the Reporting Year, the Group was not aware of any complaints
or non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations related to the
use, holding and processing of such information or personal data from
customers.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERRE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES (continued)

Section B: Social - Operating Practices
(Continued)

Aspect B7: Anti-Corruption

Qur Group has zero tolerance of anti-corruption and bribery. The Group
has adopted a set of anti-corruption policy to ensure compliance by
all employees, officers and directors of the Group. Employees should
not solicit or accept any advantage for themselves. Directors and staff
should avoid any conflicts of interest situation, at which their private
interest conflicts with the Group's interest.

A whistle blowing policy is applicable to all employees of the Group.
The purpose of formulating the whistle blowing policy is to increase
the awareness of maintaining internal corporate justice. It provides all
the employees of the Group with reporting channels and guidance on
whistle blowing. Our management will review and take follow-up actions
o investigate every suspected misconduct case raised by the whistle
plowing mechanism.

For the Reporting Year, the Group there was not aware of any
misconduct and any material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations related to anti-corruption.

Section B: Social - Community

Aspect B8: Community Investment

As a socially responsible Company, we are engaged in ongoing
community and charity work. For example, we sponsored raw material
to charity event. In the forthcoming year, we will continue to expand
community activities to serve the interest of the society.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2019,

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company during the year was investment
holding.

The principal activities of the Group during the year consisted of
investment holding, the sale and manufacture of printing products,
and the internet and technology business. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and review in the business activities of the Group,
including a description of the principal risks and uncertainties faced
by the Group and an indication of the likely future development of the
Group’s business, are set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 3
to 4 and pages 6 to 15 of this annual report, respectively. Certain key
performance indicators, a discussion on the Group’s environment
policies and performance and its compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations, and an account of the Group’s relationship with its
key stakeholders are included in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis”. These discussions form part of this “Report of the Directors”,

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year and the Company’s and the Group's
financial positions at that date are set out in the financial statements on
pages 73 to 144,

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents per ordinary share in respect of the year to shareholders on the
register of members on 9 December 2019,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Net proceeds from the initial public offering were HK$124.0 million after
deducting all the direct costs associated with the Listing.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had used approximately HK$24.8
million for equipment upgrades on the improvement of the production
process, approximately HK$8.3 million for general working capital
and approximately HK$0.2 million for the consultation of the upgrade
of enterprise resources planning (“ERP”) system. During the year,
the net proceeds have been used for the purpose consistent with
the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” as set out
in the prospectus of the Company dated 2 November 2017 (the
“Prospectus’).

On 10 January 2017, the Group have entered into a legally binding
memorandum of understanding (the “MOU") with an independent third
party (the “New Landlord”). Pursuant to the MOU, we have the right to
lease, and the New Landlord shall lease to us, for three years (with an
option to renew granted for us for further three years), some of the area
as our new plant (the “New Plant”) within the piece of land located at
Xiagang Community, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
(R AR HAFIBER A REEm E L) for industrial use.

However, the New Landlord has sold the land together with the New
Plant to an independent third party, and hence there is a delay for the
relocation plan and the Group may not be able to relocate the factory as
originally scheduled as mentioned in the section headed “Future Plans
and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. Please refer to the “Voluntary
Announcement — Business Updates” dated 11 July 2018 for details.

On 3 June 2019, the Group entered into a cooperation framework
agreement (the “Cooperation Framework Agreement”) in relation to the
leasing and relocation of the Group’s Shenzhen Factory to the new
plant.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
COMPANY'’S INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING
(Continued)

According to the Cooperation Framework Agreement, an Independent
Third Party (the “Developer”) shall develop and construct factory, office
building, staff dormitory and utilities (the “New Properties”) on a piece
of self-owned industrial land located in Huizhou City (BN ) in the
People’s Republic of China (‘PRC”).

To the best knowledge of the Directors, it is expected that the
negotiating, finalising and signing of the Tenancy Agreement would take
place by the fourth quarter of 2021, a separate Tenancy Agreement to
lease the New Properties shall be entered into between the Developer
and the Group after negotiation and obtaining the approval from the
relevant PRC authorities.

The Company will make further announcement(s), as and when
appropriate, in relation to the status of the construction and leasing
of the New Properties, the Cooperation Framework Agreement and
the relocation plan of the Group in accordance with the Listing Rules.
Please refer to the “Voluntary Announcement — Business Updates”
dated 6 September 2019 for details.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the Group’s financial information for the last five financial
years is set out on page 2 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year
are set out in note 22 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of our directors are interested in any business apart from the
Group’s business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the
Listing Rules during the year.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Neither the Group nor the Company has any connected transactions
and/or continuing connected transactions as defined under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules during the year. The related party transactions
disclosed in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements are
exempted continuing connected transactions.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which could
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in note 23 to the financial statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2019, the Company had no reserve available for
distribution to shareholders (30 June 2018: Nil), calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$479,712,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
pbonus shares.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made no charitable contributions (2018:
HK$1,000,000).

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally adopted a share option scheme on 9
October 2017 (the “Scheme”). No share option has been granted since
the adoption of the Scheme and there was no share option outstanding
as at 30 June 2019.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 68% of the total sales for the year and
sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 23%.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 46% of the total purchases for the year and purchase
from the largest supplier included therein amounted to 18%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive directors:

Mr. CHAN Peter Tit Sang

Mr. CHAN Kenneth Chi Kin

Mr. CHAN Chi Ming

Mr. CHAN Chun Sang Desmond

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. NG Sze Yuen Terry

Dr. CHU Po Kuen Louis

Mr. HO Yuk Chi

In accordance with article 108(a) of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
A retiring director shall be eligible for re-election. The Company at the
general meeting at which a director retires may fill the vacated office.

Each of Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond,
and Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis will retire at the Annual General Meeting
("AGM") and all of them, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen, Terry, Dr. Chu Po Kuen, Louis and Mr. Ho Yuk Chi,
and as at the date of this report still considers them to be independent.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang (FR# %), aged 75, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chairman and
executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Peter Chan is responsible
for managing the overall operations and business strategic planning of
our Group. Mr. Peter Chan founded our Group in the late 1970s and
has over 37 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Peter Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr Chan Kenneth Chi Kin (BREER), aged 46, was appointed as a
Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as the chief executive
officer of our Group and executive Director on 18 January 2017. He is
responsible for formulating business strategies and overseeing general
performance of our Group, in particular the Group's sales and marketing
activities, internal audit function and information technology initiatives.
He has over 14 years of experience in the printing industry and over 21
years of experience in sales and marketing. After joining our Group in
May 2003, he has been primarily responsible for formulating business
strategies and overseeing the general performance of our Group. He
was a committee member of the 10th Zhaoging Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (FREI A K
BOAEmEREEMETEEZE®) from 2012 10 2017. He is also an
honorary chairman of the board of directors of the Zhaoging Overseas
Fraternal Association* (BEE/BINSEEENEEEEREER). M
Kenneth Chan was a member of the Entrepreneurs’ Orgamsanon —
Hong Kong Chapter Limited (B8 B F XX HEBRAF]) from
2005 to 2015, and has been an alumni of the organisation since
2015. He has been a YPO Beijing member of the Young Presidents’
Organisation — Beijing Chapter (5 F#FH &1t =5 &) from 2014 to
2019, which he has also joined as a YPO Pearl River Delta member of
the Young Presidents’ Organization — Pearl River Delta Chapter (&

HHHEIR=ADE) since 2017. Mr. Kenneth Chan is also a director
of the 3rd board of directors of the Hong Kong GuangFoZhao Fraternity
Association* (B/BBHFENERLEE = MEE ) from 2017 to 2020.
He has also been admitted to the Institute of Print-Media Professionals
(ENFIlEEE =2 A B13€) as an Honorary Fellow since June 2018. He
is also a member of Federation of Hong Kong Industries (B8 T4
@) since October 2018. Mr. Kenneth Chan completed his second year
of studies in computer science at the University of British Columbia in
Canada in 1995. He also strives to keep abreast of the technological
development. He has completed an executive programme about
exponential technologies organised by the Singularity University in
Silicon Valley, U.S. on 28 October 2016.

*

for identification purpose only
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond (&%), aged 71, was
appointed as a Director on 17 January 2017 and was designated as
an executive Director on 18 January 2017. Mr. Desmond Chan is
responsible for overseeing the daily operations of our Group in Hong
Kong. Mr. Desmond Chan joined our Group in the late 1970s and has
over 36 years of experience in the printing industry. Mr. Desmond Chan
has completed form five education.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming (FR%&8), aged 63, was appointed as a Director
on 17 January 2017 and was designated as an executive Director on
18 January 2017. Mr. Chan Chi Ming is responsible for overseeing the
daily operations of our PRC production facilities. He joined our Group in
the late 1970s upon completion of his form five education in Hong Kong
and has over 36 years of experience in the printing industry.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry (Rt JT), aged 59, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ng has
over 30 years of experience in operations and management and is
now the chief executive officer and an executive director of LAVENUE
International Holdings Limited, a private company in Hong Kong, and
his responsibilities include strategic planning, financial investments,
management of property development and investment portfolios,
both in Hong Kong and overseas. He is currently an Independent
Non-executive Director of China New City Commercial Development
Limited (stock code: 1321), a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Since January 2012, Mr. Ng has been the founding
member and a director of Terry Ng & Associates Limited in which he
manages his own investment portfolios including real estate, equity
market and private equity.

He served as an executive director of Hang Lung Group Limited (stock
code: 010) and Hang Lung Properties Limited (stock code: 101),
companies of which shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, respectively, from November 2001 to July 2010, and was
mainly responsible for their strategic and corporate planning, financial
investments, and relations with the investment community. He was also
an executive director of Giordano International Limited (stock code:
709), a company of which shares are listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Ng has over 8 years of work experience with
Giordano International Limited and its affiiated companies, and held
other various positions including senior vice president of international
business and assistant director of business development. He also
worked at the Stock Exchange and held various positions including
senior manager of the listing division, department head of the finance
division and manager of the finance division.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Ng is a fellow member of CPA Australia. He obtained a master's
degree in business administration from Asia International Open
University (Macau) (currently known as City University of Macau) in
November 1995 and a bachelor degree in commerce majoring in
accounting and finance systems from the University of New South
Wales in April 1985.

Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis (5R3E#), aged 71, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017, Dr. Chu
is currently a registered medical practitioner in Hong Kong with over
30 years of experience in medicine. In January 1973, he joined the
Medical & Health Department of the Hong Kong Government as a
medical and health officer. In September 1984, he was transferred to
the Accident & Emergency Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital
and was promoted to senior medical & health officer in May 1986. Dr.
Chu was also a medical superintendent of Tung Wah Hospital between
June 1981 and February 1982 and a medical superintendent of the
Prince of Wales Hospital between August 1989 and February 1990. He
was also actively involved in the setting up of the Accident & Emergency
Department of the Prince of Wales Hospital in 1984 and the Accident &
Emergency Information System at Queen Elizabeth Hospital in 1994. Dr.
Chu joined the Hospital Authority in December 1991 until his retirement
in July 2008 and was an adviser of service transformation of the
Accident & Emergency Department of Queen Elizabeth Hospital through
his membership in the Departmental Consultative Committee. Dr. Chu
obtained degrees of Bachelor of Medicine and Bachelor of Surgery from
the University of Hong Kong in November 1972,

Mr. Ho Yuk Chi (A& #), aged 75, was appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director on 9 October 2017. Mr. Ho has
extensive experience in education, trading and management. He
has over 30 years of experience in the education sector. Mr. Ho was
employed by the Society of Boys' Centres Chak Yan Centre School
from September 1983 to January 1994, with his last position being the
principal of the school. Since January 1994, Mr. Ho has been serving
as the managing director of Wiseville International Limited, a company
primarily engaged in the trading of wine and glassware. At the moment
he is also holding the post of director in Wiseville (Asia-Pacific) Limited,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong. Mr. Ho obtained the certificate of
teachers in Northcote Training College in 1963 and the certificate for
teachers of maladjusted and socially deprived children issued by the
Hong Kong Education Department in April 1982 and a Bachelor of Arts
degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1992.
Mr. Ho has also contributed to the Hong Kong Special Schools Council
and served in various positions, including honorary deputy secretary
and vice-chairman, from 1985 to 1993,
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Independent Non-executive Directors (Continued)
Mr. Ho was the director of the following company which was
incorporated in Hong Kong and was deregistered, the details of which
are as follows:

Company name

DE BB EBMEED

Nature of business/proceedings

ESEHRE

BEENRSNEEERBE &)

BYFHTES @A)
EEGRETIHIRAZESR  ZERAIRE
MRS B BUE MR - SHET

Date of deregistration

BUHEE M B 3

Casa Gaudi Limited

(REZHEBARIQA)
REEARAA SERFIUE AT E 8 E
Mr. Ho confirmed that there have been no claims against him in
relation to the above-mentioned company that was deregistered,
and the above-mentioned company was solvent at the time of being
deregistered. No material non-compliant incidents, claims, litigation
or legal proceedings are indicated to involve the above-mentioned
company.

Senior Management

Mr. Tang Shichun (Bt %), aged 49, is the deputy general manager
of Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) Company Limited and is responsible
for overseeing the production activities. He has over 23 years of
experience in printing services and management. Prior to joining our
Group in 1997, he had around four years of experience in Hebei Xintai
Ruikai Printing Limited* (R[b & B & MRSV EIBEER A F) as an
apprentice and his last position held was a supervisor of the printing
plate department (ENRIHREFFIEEE). He obtained a certificate (4%}
£) of printing technology* (ENRIFAT) from the Beijing Institute of
Graphic Communication* (36 & ENRIE2E) in July 1992,

Mr. Chan Chiu Ning (FREiZ8), aged 56, is the deputy general
manager of Sun Hing Printing Company Limited and is responsible for
operations and human resources management. He has over 20 years
of experience in the manufacturing industry. Prior to joining our Group
in July 2002, he had been a supervisor of the customer clearance
department in Solid Company Limited for over seven years. Mr. Chan
has completed his high school education in the PRC.

*

for identification purpose only

Ceased to carry on business for more than 3 months
immediately before application for deregistration

EBEB=1EH

28 July 2006
“EERFELAZTAR

I ERER - #EN A B BUBEM 2 ARk
=E - B EARREUEEMZ KRB EERED
EFRARBEESERTEREN  RE - FH
SEARRET -

aREEE

BELE 49K REBEHCRIDERA
AZEIREE AREELERD - HNEIRAR
BREBTHBEGESFER - R—LAEFM
AREER - RAEERETRIALEDNBRESR
RARHMERBFEDMF - BB AT A RIRELPIE
% o FR—ANZF £ ARG RIS ENR
RIMARREFE -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S PROFILES (continued)
Company Secretary

Ms. Ng Yin Ting Joyce (R#Z), aged 31, was appointed as
the company secretary of our Company on 18 January 2017 and is
responsible for the Company secretarial matters of our Group. She has
been an assistant vice president with AE Majoris Advisory Company
Limited since September 2013. She worked for Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu from October 2009 to March 2013 with her last position
as a senior auditor. Ms. Ng obtained a bachelor's degree of business
administration in accountancy from the City University of Hong Kong in
July 2009. She has been admitted as a certified public accountant of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since March
2013,

In view of Ms. Ng's experience in legal and company secretarial
functions and with stock exchange rules and regulations, our Directors
believe that Ms. Ng has the appropriate expertise for the purposes of
Rule 8.17 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is
not determined by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s board
of directors with reference to directors’ duties, responsibilities and
performance and the results of the Group.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s articles of association and subject to the
provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, every director
or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he may
sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or
otherwise in relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the directors and
officers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

No director nor a connected entity of a director had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements, or
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries was a party during the
year.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The controlling shareholders as defined in the Listing Rules and, in the
context of the Company, means Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang, Mr. Chan
Kenneth Chi Kin, Mr. Desmond Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Goody
Luck Limited and Goody Capital Limited (collectively, the “Controlling
Shareholders”), have entered into the deed of non-competition dated
9 October 2017 (the "“Deed of Non-competition”) in favour of the
Company, details of which were set out in the Prospectus dated 2
November 2017. Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, each of
the Controlling Shareholders have undertaken to the Company that
with effect from the Listing Date, they shall, and shall procure that their
respective close associates and/or companies controlled by them
(other than our Group) shall not, directly or indirectly, be interested or
involved or engaged in, or acquire or hold any right or interest (in each
case whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and whether
for profit, reward or otherwise) in any business which is or is about to
be engaged in any business which competes or is likely to compete
directly or indirectly with the businesses currently and from time to time
engaged by our Group (including the business as a printing service
provider).
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed to the Company by
written confirmations that from the Listing Date and up to the date of the
Annual Report 2018/19, they and their respective close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) have complied with the undertakings
contained in the Deed of Non-competition. For the year ended 30 June
2019 and up to the date of the Annual Report 2018/19, save and
except for the interest that the Directors have in the Company and its
subsidiaries, none of the Directors, the Controlling Shareholders or their
respective close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) had
any business or interest in a business which competes or may compete
with the business of the Group and any other conflicts of interest with
the Group.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors had reviewed the written
confirmations and the status of the compliance and confirmed that each
of the Controlling Shareholders of the Company have complied with the
non-competition undertaking and the non-competition undertaking has
been enforced by the Company in accordance with its terms.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
As at 30 June 2019, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), which was notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO), or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or which
were otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are set out
below:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations

ERNE
A. EERTHRABREAQITRGRME
BEROZERER, AR E)

RAEQARREEAEBEZEARD 2FA

Approximate
percentage of

Company/ Number and the Company’s
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
ERARZE
Fi N BEHER ERITRAK
BEEps BHAR SR EEMHERSH BRI BYBSH
Chan Peter Tit Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
BREE /NG| REEZE R 360,000,000
(Btt1)(Betz) B 17
Goody Luck Limited Beneficial owner 986 shares of 98.6%
(“Goody Luck”) US$1.00 each
ERBEAA o8l R MEE
1.00% 7T 2 5
Chan Kenneth ChiKin - The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE A7) REEE# S 360,000,000
(Btet1)(Hiz2) H i 1)
Goody Luck Beneficial owner 14 shares of 1.4%
US$1.00 each
ERBREA 14 AR EE
1.00% 72 R’ H
Goody Capital Limited Beneficial owner 1 share of 338.3%
(“Goody Capital”) US3$1.00
E=EAA 1RRE(E

1.00F L2 BK&n
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EEEHRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)
A. Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and

underlying shares of the Company

(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (Continued)

ERNE
A. EERTHRABREAQITRGRME
BEROZERER, AR E)

RADRFEEMEBEERG 2 FR (F)

Approximate
percentage of

Company/ Number and the Company’s
name of associated Nature of interest class of total issued
Name of director company and capacity securities share capital
BARDRAZE
F N BEHAR ERITRA
BEEps BHAR SR ERMERIH k<Yl BRBESH
Chan Chi Ming The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
PR 85 ARA] REEZE RS 360,000,000
(Kist1)(HtE2) & B 17
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
US$1.00
E=EAA 1RRE(E
1.00% T2 R
Chan Chun Sang The Company Interest in a controlled 360,000,000 75%
Desmond corporation (Note 1) (Note 2) shares
REE PN MR EE# S 360,000,000
(Kist1)(Hiz) R A 1)
Goody Capital Beneficial owner 1 share of 33.3%
US$1.00
E=REREA 1RRE(E
1,005 7T 2 5
Notes: Btet -

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 20.2% 1.

by Goody Capital immediately after completion of the capitalisation
issue and the share offer (without taking into account any of the
shares which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
over-allotment option and the options that may be granted under
the Share Option Scheme). Goody Luck is owned as to 98.6%
by Mr. Peter Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and Goody
Capital is owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan, 33.3% by
Mr. Chan Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

A.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and/or short positions in shares and
underlying shares of the Company
(Continued)

Long positions in shares of the Company or any of its

associated corporations (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming, and Mr.
Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr.
Desmond Chan and Mr, Chan Chi Ming confirms that since 5
February 1991; and (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr, Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (iii) they have operated members of
the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis and
have made collective decisions in respect of the financial and
operating policies of the members of the Group, and will continue
to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is deemed
to be interested in 75.0% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations

Saved as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2019, none of the
Directors and/or chief executives of the Company nor their
associates had or was deemed to have any interests or short
positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which each of them has taken or deemed to have taken
under the SFO), or which would be required, pursuant to section
352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register required to be kept
therein or which would be required, pursuant to the Model Code,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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EEGHRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company
As at 30 June 2019, the following persons (other than the
directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests of
5% or more in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

EZRE®)
B. FERRREMATRELTRG

REERGD 2 EER, KR

REZZE-AFRA=1TH UTAL(E
BARREERITHARE) RAR AR K
HERDPEELARRAREES LB
EGRPIFICOIHRATE 2 BEE LM 25%
A EE

REQARBBERZEFR

Approximate

percentage of

the Company’s

Number of total issued

Name of shareholder Capacity/nature of interest shares share capital

LR N e i
ERITRAE
BRREEERB B0, RERME RGO EE BABES
Goody Luck Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
BmiEm izt 2)
Goody Capital Beneficial interest (Notes 1, 2) 360,000,000 75%
BmiEm (Mt 2)

Mr. Peter Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%

PR A SR A imnE (I it2)

Mr. Kenneth Chan Interest in controlled corporations (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%

PREERSEAE R EE g (A it2)

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%

PRAARSE A& R LE k(A iE2)

Mr. Desmond Chan Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 360,000,000 75%

BREESE RimnE (I it2)

Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana Interest of spouse (Note 3) 360,000,000 75%

PREEL L I B (H73)

Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy Interest of spouse (Note 4) 360,000,000 75%

FTEEz+ B iStEas (Ht4)

Ms. Lee Shuk Fong Interest of spouse (Note 5) 360,000,000 75%

£ PR Fl Bt (H/775)

Ms. Tso Yin Wah Interest of spouse (Note 6) 360,000,000 75%

EERELL IS (Hte)

Deputada Leong On Kei, Angela  Beneficial interest 24,000,000 5%

RLHZEE oy
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company

(Continued)
Notes:

1. The Company is owned as to 54.8% by Goody Luck and 20.2%
by Goody Capital after completion of the capitalisation issue and
the share offer. Goody Luck is owned as to 98.6% by Mr. Peter
Chan and 1.4% by Mr. Kenneth Chan, and Goody Capital is
owned as to 33.3% by Mr. Desmond Chan, 33.3% by Mr. Chan
Chi Ming and 33.3% by Mr. Kenneth Chan.

2. Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Kenneth Chan, Mr. Chan Chi Ming and Mr.
Desmond Chan are persons acting in concert pursuant to the
Acting in Concert Confirmation and Undertaking and accordingly
each of them is deemed to be interested in the shares held by the
others. By the Acting In Concert Confirmation And Undertaking,
with respect to the businesses of each member of the Group,
(i) each of Mr. Peter Chan and Mr. Desmond Chan confirms
that since 31 December 1990; (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr.
Desmond Chan and Mr. Chan Chi Ming confirms that since 5
February 1991; and (i) each of Mr. Peter Chan, Mr. Desmond
Chan, Mr., Chan Chi Ming and Mr. Kenneth Chan confirms that
since 8 March 2010, (i) they have agreed to consult each other
and reach an unanimous consensus among themselves on such
matters being the subject matters of any shareholders’ resolution,
prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed at any
shareholders’ meeting of each member of the Group, and have
historically voted on each resolution in the same way; (i) they have
centralised the ultimate control and right to make final decisions
with respect to their interests in the businesses and projects of
members of the Group; and (i) they have operated members
of the Group as a single business venture on a collective basis
and have made collective decisions in respect of the financial
and operating policies of the members of the Group, and wil
continue to do so. As such, each of the controlling shareholders is
deemed to be interested in 75% of the issued share capital of the
Company.

3. Ms. Chan Lai Lin Diana is the spouse of Mr. Peter Chan. Under the
SFO, Ms. Chan is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Peter Chan is interested.

4. Ms. Wong Orangeo Wendy is the spouse of Mr. Kenneth Chan.
Under the SFO, Ms. Wong is deemed to be interested in the same
number of shares in which Mr. Kenneth Chan is interested.

5. Ms. Lee Shuk Fong is the spouse of Mr. Chan Chi Ming. Under the
SFO, Ms. Lee is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Chan Chi Ming is interested.

6. Ms. Tso Yin Wah is the spouse of Mr. Desmond Chan. Under the
SFO, Ms. Tso is deemed to be interested in the same number of
shares in which Mr. Desmond Chan is interested.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEGHRE

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

B. Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and/or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (Continued)

Short positions in shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations

As at 30 June 2019, no person, other than the directors and chief
executive of the Company, whose interests are set out in the
section headed “Directors’ and chief executive's interests and/or
short positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company”
above, had registered an interest or a short position in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
of interests required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

INTEREST OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed Kingsway Capital Limited ("Kingsway”) as the compliance
adviser. As notified by Kingsway, compliance adviser of our Company,
neither Kingsway nor any of its close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) and none of the directors or employees of Kingsway had
any interest in the share capital of the Company or any member of the
Group (including options or rights to subscribe for such securties, if any)
which is required to be notified to our Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules as at the date of this report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Emst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as auditors
of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
Chan Peter Tit Sang
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 18 September 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

P>
EY::

To the shareholders of Sun Hing Printing Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Sun
Hing Printing Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the "Group”) set out on pages 73 to 144, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30
June 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (‘HKSAS") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters
below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENBNAEERRETSE

Provision for inventories

FERE

As at 30 June 2019, the Group recorded inventories

of approximately HK$25,729,000 and a provision for
impairment of approximately HK$668,000 was recorded.
The write-down of inventories to net realisable value was
estimated by management through the application of
judgement and the use of highly subjective assumptions.
RZZ-NFRA=TH  "EESFISFEL25,729, ooo
PBIT - REMSIRMEEEA668,0008 T - EERERBIE
FIETA S E B RER G AT EE A #REE -

The accounting policies and disclosures for the impairment
provision on inventories are included in notes 3, 4, 7 and 15
to the consolidated financial statements.
BEGFERERENSTTECE RIRBEERENGZE MR
RMIEES 4 7RG
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Our audit procedures included:

BAIEIZF B

obtaining an understanding of management's controls over
identifying and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excess and other inventory items whose costs may not be
fully recoverable;

BREREBHNBRMEERE « B
R E MR 2 BB BB 2 FF B HIIE S

C REH BRI

evaluating the methodologies, inputs and assumptions
used by the Group in calculating the impairment; and
A BEEEFERERPIANTE - BABENRR
N4

assessing the adequacy of impairment provision by
reviewing subsequent sales after the year end and a
comparison with historical sales records.
FREHFERRARHEEREFELIFHE
B REHERERBEEERE °
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’'s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continvec)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concemn. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concem.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ZBERE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continvec)

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

18 September 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEERE

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F—-)\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
REVENUE = 6 282,037 270,195
Cost of sales SHE KA (180,913) (179,658)
Gross profit EF 101,124 90,537
Other income EMUA 6 3,641 2,351
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HEAX (4,586) (4,234)
Administrative expenses THAX (58,973) (58,434)
Other operating expenses, net Hh & FE (200) (847)
Listing expenses WX - (14,427)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BB A% A 7 41,006 15,446
Income tax expenses FriSfiF X 10 (8,754) (6,429
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR RATHEE AL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF FEEF
THE COMPANY 32,252 9,017
EARNINGS PER SHARE AATRERFE AEMN
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY BRER
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 12 HK cents/Efl  HK cents/&fl
Basic and diluted BERREE 6.72 2.07
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEHEWER

For the year ended 30 June
BEANA=THLEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —F—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEBHN 32,252 9,017
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hi 2wz (EE)
INCOME/(LOSS)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that  REBHAR AT e EFH D AT RN
may be reclassified to profit or loss in Hipzemiizs, (BE) :
subsequent periods:
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINETS R E X Z 5
foreign operations (3,528) 2,955
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/ SRhEM2mEkE (FiE) -
(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX & $i1E (3,528) 2,955
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ZA&AR#EEABGLEE
FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE EEKEATE
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 28,724 11,972
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBRRE

30 June 30 June
2019 2018
—E-hF —F—)\F
~BA=1+H ~A=1H
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BraE FET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 13 54,197 55,465
Intangible asset B EE 14 2,700 2,700
Prepayments and deposits ANFIR RiZE® 17 6,764 5,048
Deferred tax asset BERIBEAE 21 149 94
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 63,810 63,307
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories FE 15 25,061 19,849
Trade receivables 5 RN TE 16 54,541 51,431
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  Fa {3178 - 24 K H A FE U 3178 17 12,187 9,447
Tax recoverable AT Ug Bl £ IE 272 807
Restricted cash SRR3R & 18 11,402 1,560
Cash and cash equivalents HENREEEBY 18 174,651 189,097
Total current assets MENEEBE 278,114 272,191
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade payables =) AN eE 19 16,003 17,411
Other payables and accruals Hih N RIERETER 20 17,050 15,182
Amount due to a director BN —RESHE 27(b) - 3
Tax payable FERTREIE 9,527 13,062
Total current liabilities mE B EEE 42,580 45,658
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 235,534 226,533
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EEZAERRBARSE
LIABILITIES 299,344 289,840
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY FREBASE
Deferred tax liability EEFIIEAGE 21 130 150
Net assets BEFE 299,214 289,690
EQUITY xR
Equity attributable to owners RATEB ANELRERE
of the Company
Share capital N 20 4,800 4,800
Reserves & 23 294,414 284,890
Total equity RS 4EER 299,214 289,690
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREER

Year ended 30 June 2019 BHEZZE-NFAA=THILFE
Exchange
Share Share Other  Retained fluctuation Total
capital  premium reserve profits reserve equity
RAx  RGEE  HtRE  REEN EXRBRE  EREE

HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK§000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000
TET AT TET TET TET AT

(note 23@@))  (note 23(b)) (note 23(c))
(Histose)  (W2sp) (H#25()
At duly 2017 RZE—tE+A-H = (328,049) 116,690 4,565 127,265
Profit for the year EREF - - 9,017 - 9,017
Other comprehensive income for the year:  ERE M 2E IS
Exchange differences on translation of BRESIEBNELZR
foreign operations - - - 2,995 2,905
Total comprehensive income for the year £ A MG EE = = 9,017 2,905 11,972
Capitalisation issue of shares (ote 22(8) BTN (H1a222/7)) 3,600 = - - -
Issug of new shares (note 22(b)) BRI (W220)) 1,200 - - - 165,600
Share issue expenses (note 22(b) RBIBL (Frzoon) = - - - (16,147)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RIZ-NERA=TER
“Z-\FtA-H 4,800 (328,049)*  125,707* 7,520 289,690
Profit for the year EERA - - 32,252 - 32,252
Other comprehensive loss for the year: EREMPEER
Exchange differences on translation of BREBNERNELZH
foreign operations - - - (3,528) (3,528)
Total comprehensive income for the yeer ~ FRZEWE L5 - - 32,252 (3,528) 28,724
Final dividend for 2018 (note 11) - \FRBRE W11 - - (14,400) - (14,400)
Interim dividend for 2019 (note 11) “E-NERERE (HE11) - - (4,800) - (4,800)
At 30 June 2019 R-E-NEXA=1H 4,800 (328,049)* 138,750 3,002¢ 299,214

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$294,414,000 (2018: HK$284,890,000) in the consolidated
statement of financlal position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 30 June 2019 HEZZE-—NFAA=TAHILFE
2019 2018
—ZE-hEF —E-N\F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
BiaE FET FET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHHBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 75 A1 A 41,006 15,446
Adjustments for: AT SIEMTERE -
Interest income FBUWA 6 (3,640) (2,343)
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEDE BENKEHEBEH
plant and equipment [ 7 42 12
Depreciation E 7 9,608 8,841
Write-down of inventories MRTE 7 668 =
47,684 21,956
Increase in inventories FEEN (6,779) (2,471)
Increase in trade receivables E 5 I GRIELE 1N (3,140) (850)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TN RIA -~ 12E R E A EBGIR
deposits and other receivables () (5,019) 227
Decrease in trade payables B 5 e FIER (1,097) (157)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables EH b fEM B K ERTE R
and accruals #hn,/ Ofd) 2,290 (4,299)
Cash generated from operations LEMERS 33,939 14,906
Hong Kong profits tax paid ERBEBFEH (9,618) (18,010)
Overseas taxes paid EEINRIE (1,917) (1,889
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEBMBREREFE 22,404 7
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZBHFBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received 2 U F & 6 3,640 2,343
Purchases of items of property, plantand BB - MELXEHER
equipment 13 (10,803) (14,236)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HE& ¥ % - M= MR EEH
plant and equipment Frig 1A 227 7
Increase in restricted cash PR HI3R & 18 N (9,842) -
Net cash flows used in investing activiies R &SRB FTAIR &R 8/ F5E (16,778) (11,816)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING RMETBHMEBRSRE
ACTIVITIES
Dividend paid EfRE (19,200) -
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRRB TS 3R 22(b) - 165,600
Share issue expenses AR BE1TR 22(b) - (15,147)
Changes in the balance with a director B —REEMEREE (3) (6,431)
Net cash flows from/(used in) BB EEE,(FTA)
financing activities RemeF 88 (19,203) 144,022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERER

Year ended 30 June 2019 BHEZZE-NFAA=THILEFE
2019 2018
—E-hE —F-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRBSEEWEM CBD)
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HE (13,577) 132,213
Cash and cash equivalents FHNIR S LIRS EEY
at beginning of year 189,097 56,318
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 4N FE 5% 84 B 5 22 % 28 (869) 566
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERRASEEY
AT END OF YEAR 174,651 189,097
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HR&RESZEYEBRIN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances e MIRTT 4 19,666 15,312
Non-pledged time deposits and wealth BERREAIHELR=EAKN
management products with original EIH T ER RIEA E R
maturity of less than three months
when acquired 154,985 173,785
Cash and cash equivalents as stated REReRERMEEHE
in the consolidated statement of MWARFIRIAS &
cash flows and consolidated REEEY
statement of financial position 174,651 189,097
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The registered address of the Company is P.O.
Box 1350, Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-
1108, Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at 4/F., Sze Hing Industrial Building, 35-37
Lee Chung Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) were
engaged in the manufacturing and sale of printing products
during the year.

Goody Luck Limited (“Goody Luck”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), is the immediate holding
company of the Company, and in the opinion of the Directors,
which is also the ultimate holding company of the Company.

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

AAREEER

ARRR—HERERSTMKRINE
PR A A] o AN A Al AY & it #b 4k B P.O. Box
1350,Clifton House, 75 Fort Street, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands ° ZxA &]
Y 2 S B N BB S AR 36-37
SR T2 Kig4ig -

AARBREERAR o AD B REN B
NR(GIBAAEE DREARERIER
SHEENRIS, -

Goody Luck Limited([ Goody Luck]) &R &
BHERIHES ((ABERRES ) MK
MHWAR  ARRRINEEZERAR MW
EERABENMABEADBNRKRIERAF -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-NFXRA=+H
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.

INFORMATION (Continuea)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

AEIREERER®)

BERMELQTNER
ARFEEMBORWFEMT -

Place of
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ Percentage of
registration registered equity attributable
Name and business share capital to the Company Principal activities
LM ERL T 2 BERITEER/ KRR
% REEHH R BRI TEER
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
China IOE Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 = 100 Internet and technology
HEEYBEERAR & 28T business
SRR RREES
Mau Hing Intemnational Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Investment holding and sale of
BRERARAR &k 10,000/7C printing products
REERRHEEDRR
Strong Luck Limited* BvI US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBERRES E REER
Sun Hing Printing Company Limited Hong Kong HK$6,000,000 = 100 Sale of printing products
SROFIERAT B 6,000,000%3% HELRIS
Tung Pak Printing (Shenzhen) People’s Republic of HK$67,000,000 = 100 Manufacture and sale of
Company Limited™* China (the “PRC")/ 67,000,000 7T printing products
RARAOR)ARAR" Mainland China B R SHE RIS
mEE AR KA
(TRE D),/
i)
Winstar Development Limited Hong Kong/ HK$2 = 100 Sale of printing products
KRERBBAR Mainland China 28T SHEERIS
B/ PENH

of the Ernst & Young global network

the laws of the PRC.

Not audited by Emst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm

This entity is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for
the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

© REEBRAKEHAEBFRT KD RE
BEMRLEAREE -

ES

ZEBREDRREEMANEBEE L

ERITEZR/IBXELAREARFE
XEIBRASEFEETRAKENA
ARBIMEAR - BEEBRUKERE M E
RANMFBEREEHRRBRTTE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”)
(which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000"),
unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 30 June 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including
a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those retumns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

()  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the holding company of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results
in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control described above. A
change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of
control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary,
(i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and
(iii) the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the
fair value of any investment retained and (jii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKFRS 15 Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

HK(FRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

Annual Improvements Amendments to HKFRS 1 and
2014-2016 Cycle HKAS 28

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of HKFRS
9 and HKFRS 15, the adoption of the above new and revised
standards has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

2.1

2.2

REEE )
FERENEEw)
HAEBMAEWB AR IEHE  Aler
IEERZMHBRARNEE(RERE)RE
f& () EAFE R RS M RRE (A ¢ R (i)zT A
K REHE N Z5 - WHER()EWRKRE
B ATE  (IVEARBIRER A TE : Kii)
FREA W R IBRERO TR R BRLEA -
ERHEREMEEKEERNAEREN
MR ER D T EH D B E B AR B 5 (K
HA) EERASEEELESHRBEER
BEMEFEANEERR -

B BRREREESEED

AEBERAFENMBHRE B IRERAIA
NETR] R RERT BB M S AR o

FRMBWMEEN  UROBEENHZ
R ZERT RBH 7RG E

BRMBMERR HEBUHHEER

P4 ZERT FAFERBE X —HF
ERm BB B &

BRIEI 2 F T A
BERMBRELR 2HTA
FEO5R
EBUBMEER FKEEFELA K
%1558
EBVEMELER  HEBYEHRETER
5

1R ZERT FI5FKEEFE
R as 698 0F
BB G LR BEREYE

BA0R 2T

5% (BBRVBRE IMELXZRENAE
RELZEE)
— 205,

—EEF-FE  EEREREER
—NFHEECFE BIRRESE
2 AR 285E 2 EET

BT XAEEE @R BB HmEERIFER
RBBFERELERNFE1SR 2ZEN - K
T RIS RT R B i E M SRR
WEBREMNERMBEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces HKAS 39
Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments
against the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 July
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues to be reported under HKAS 39.

Changes to the impairment model

(M

(ii)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected losses for
all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for
each group of receivables are estimated on the basis of
historical loss experience, adjusted to reflect the effects of
current conditions as well as forward looking information.
Management has closely monitored the credit qualities and
the collectability of the trade receivables. Trade receivables
in dispute are assessed individually for impairment to
determine whether specific loss allowance provisions are
required. The adoption of the simplified expected credit
loss approach under HKFRS 9 has not resulted in any
additional impairment loss for trade receivables as at 1 July
2018.

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost
For other financial assets carried at amortised cost,
including cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, the expected credit loss is based on
the 12-month expected credit loss. This represents the
portion of lifetime expected credit loss that results from
default events on the financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on the lifetime
expected credit loss. Management has closely monitored
the credit qualities and the collectability of other financial
assets at amortised cost and considers that the expected
credit loss is immaterial.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(o)

HKFRS 15 and its amendments replace HKAS 11
Construction Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations and it applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15,
issued in July 2014, establishes a new five-step model to
account for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The standard also introduces extensive
qualitative and quantitative disclosure requirements,
including disaggregation of total revenue, information
about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates. The disclosures are included
in note 6 to the financial statements. As a result of the
application of HKFRS 15, the Group has changed the
accounting policy with respect to revenue recognition
in note 3 to the financial statements. The standard will
supersede all current revenue recognition requirements
under HKFRSs.

As a result of the application of HKFRS 15, the Group has
changed the accounting policy with respect to revenue
recognition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date of
initial application or only to contracts that are not completed
at this date. The Group has elected to apply the standard to
contracts that are not completed as at 1 July 2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of HKFRS
15 was recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of retained profits as at 1 July 2018. Therefore, the
comparative information was not restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 11, HKAS 18 and related
interpretations.

Before the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group recognised
consideration received from customers in advance as
other payables included in other payables and accruals.
Under HKFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract
liabilities which are included in other payables and
accruals.

Therefore, upon adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group
reclassified HK$564,000 from other payables to contract
liabilities as at 1 July 2018 in relation to the consideration
received from customers in advance as at 1 July 2018.

As at 30 June 2019, under HKFRS 15, HK$1,442,000
was reclassified from other payables to contract liabilities
in relation to the consideration received from customers in
advance for the sale of goods.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these

financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 16

HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HK(FRIC)-Int 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Definition of a Business®

Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Leases’

Insurance Contracts®

Definition of Material?

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement’

Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures’

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments’

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and
HKAS 23!

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

S Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

& No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE BT K

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July 2020.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and
in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture.
The amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss
when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business,
a gain or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in
the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor's interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates
and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (Continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the
Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and liabilities
for most leases. The standard includes two elective recognition
exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets and short-
term leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease
liability) and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment property in
HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment
to which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased to reflect the interest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required
to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine those payments. Lessees
will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the
lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from
the accounting under HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
all leases using the same classification principle as in HKAS 17
and distinguish between operating leases and finance leases.
HKFRS 16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a modified
retrospective approach. The Group will adopt HKFRS 16 from 1
July 2019. The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions
in HKFRS 16 to recognise the cumulative effect of initial
adoption as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings at 1 July 2019 and will not restate the comparatives.
In addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements
to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The
right-of-use asset will be measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial application.
As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, at 30 June
2019, the Group had future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases in aggregate of HK$36,341,000.
Upon adoption of HKFRS 16, certain amounts included therein
may need to be recognised as new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities. The Group is currently assessing the impact of HKFRS
16. Further analysis will be needed to determine the amount of
new right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to be recognised,
including, but not limited to, the incremental borrowing rate to be
applied for different leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE BT K

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 July
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of
HKFRS 9 only includes interests in an associate or joint venture
to which the equity method is applied and does not include long-
term interests that in substance form part of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture, to which the equity method has
not been applied. Therefore, an entity applies HKFRS 9, rather
than HKAS 28, including the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9, in accounting for such long-term interests. HKAS 28
is then applied to the net investment, which includes the long-
term interests, only in the context of recognising losses of an
associate or joint venture and impairment of the net investment
in the associate or joint venture. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments on 1 July 2019 and will assess its business
model for such long-term interests based on the facts and
circumstances that exist on 1 July 2019 using the transitional
requirements in the amendments. The Group also intends to
apply the relief from restating comparative information for prior
periods upon adoption of the amendments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

HK(FRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty
that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often referred to as
‘uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation does not apply
to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS 12, nor does it
specifically include requirements relating to interest and penalties
associated with uncertain tax treatments. The interpretation
specifically addresses (i) whether an entity considers uncertain
tax treatments separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes
about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities;
(i) how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses, tax
bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates; and
(iv) how an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances.
The interpretation is to be applied retrospectively, either fully
retrospectively without the use of hindsight or retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of application as an adjustment to
the opening equity at the date of initial application, without the
restatement of comparative information. The Group expects to
adopt the interpretation from 1 July 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories
and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the
asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in
which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent
with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period
as to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if;

(@)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

M

(i)
(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

M

(i)

(i)

(v)

(vi)

(wif)

(vili)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation Property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates
used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 3% to 5%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over the lease terms
Plant and machinery 5% to 20%

Furniture, fixtures and
20% to 33.3%
15% to 25%

office equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised
in profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continueq)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with
finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually either individually or at the cash-generating
unit level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life
of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to
determine whether the indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lesseg, rentals payable under
operating leases net of any incentives received from the lessor
are charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or
loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics
and the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair
value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which
the Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at
the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 July 2018)” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018) (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding.

The Group'’s business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (debt instruments)

The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(policies under HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial investments, as appropriate.
When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured
at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets, except in the case of financial
assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
method less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in other income and gains in profit or loss. The loss
arising from impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other
operating expenses for loans and receivables.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018 and policies under HKAS 39
applicable before 1 July 2018)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e.,
statement of financial position) when:

removed from the Group’s consolidated

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

° the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either
(a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement,
it evaluates if, and to what extent,
and rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the Group
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the

it has retained the risk

Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July
2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of
collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to
the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result
from default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the
credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases,
the Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the Group
is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July
2018) (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment
under the general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade
receivables which apply the simplified approach as detailed
pelow.

— Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but

Stage 1

Stage 2

that are not credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Stage 3

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing
component and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its
accounting policy to adopt the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs with policies as described above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July
2018)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that a
debtor or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial
assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as
the difference between the asset’'s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The present value
of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of
an allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans
and receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the
Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies
under HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July
2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the
recovery is credited to other operating expenses in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under
HKFRS 9 applicable from 1 July 2018 and
HKAS 39 applicable before 1 July 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, or as loans and
borrowings, payables, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals and an amount due to a director.

Subsequent measurement of loans and borrowings
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 July 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
(policies under HKFRS 9 applicable from
1 July 2018 and HKAS 39 applicable
before 1 July 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of
the reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is included
in finance costs in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilites are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

FESHBERE »)

Frg®i#)
BERBREETIAAA A EINERZE
RERPARBELREMNRSARBE
BEER - RERBEESRAAEHIAA
MAZEFNENEREZRE  AERBAN
BB LR AR E R T AR M ER
B FEY IS THER - HEPA T BRERSD -

e EEMAHENEREEMNELHESR
ERBYTHRBLIFEHEHNXS
THEEXAEMEL - RRXZE
B M K AR B M 2B 1R 15

B8 .
TR R

e HRKREWEBARMEBN KN
R RERBEEENEREZRA
AR R REE - BA R A A
ZE W = T AR B R T s A
B TEHER o

BELERIAEENREERS RS R
& WA F R BEHR B SR A A
HREHXMOEBRELEHREERH
B AERELEHRBREENSRERNRE
AT NA R B A R BUA FIA N =
2EREMAEIEHRIAE ERFHER o

BEXERREERBBEENBEREHRD
BHRELE LERMORER(RBE)RE
REENEERGEHROERERRE

==

404 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED $f S ENRIZRARAF / Annual Report 42 i 2018 /2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilites and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current
tax liabilites and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition (applicable from

1 July 2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group
will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at
contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group
a significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT FTEEHBRRBE )

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (applicable from
1 July 2018) (Continued)

WEER(BE=F-N\F+LtA—H
BEA) #)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) REEEFEHN K (&)
Sale of goods HE R
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time REEEEMMIKEZ IR E EE G R

when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally
on delivery of the goods.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Revenue recognition (applicable before

1 July 2018)

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

TEFPANEH(—RAREH)HER

H A

MBWARMABERN EOXIE Rt £ £
R YRAGS B TAREREFFHAR
R HAR (58 ) B R AR RER & WA R
FRESBEEREFEMFE -

bh@mBR(R=—F—-N\FLtHA—H
RIEA)

W 5 4 R 5 T 7 1) A S L L M
AT $E T BRHE T R ¢

(@  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and (a) REHEERHKZANEEENEKX
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer, BB K Bl hEEE T B HRER - Al
provided that the Group maintains neither managerial EAREE W ERE —RAHEE A
involvement to the degree usually associated with ez BELHEE - HEHEEMT
ownership, nor effective control over the goods sold; and THEBERESIE &

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective (o) FIEWMARBERMNEEIZRFTE%E

interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Contract liabilities (applicable from

1 July 2018)

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Group has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Group
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is
due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Group performs under the contract.

Employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)

Pension scheme (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in central pension
schemes operated by the local municipal governments, the
assets of which are held separately from those of the Group.
Contributions are made by the Group based on a percentage of
the participating employees’ salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension schemes. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully once made.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the memorandum and bye-laws of the relevant
companies grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items
are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-
monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item
(i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

The functional currency of certain overseas subsidiaries is a
currency other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rate for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash
flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of an overseas subsidiary
which arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rate for the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the provision
for income taxes worldwide. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain
during the ordinary course of business. The Group recognises
liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of
whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below.

SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED $i@ENRIHERAR A E / Annual Report 42 5545 2018 / 20
110

4. EXRSTHHERMEF

BEAEENBRRE - EBEAFELE
TEMEREE RAx BEREER
B BHEREERARIARABERENH
B - fAEE RRE - B BERER LA RE
EREAREMARANTZENEEN
BEMREEFHENFEE -

#

RERAAKRESTRRNBRES - BEE
EFHATHMBRRAERBBAZK
TR E (S R A SR HERRR S ) -

e
AEBABNZERDERRNAEN - £
EEMSHNEHBEERFTRELEKRH
B - EAEEBBET  FEZXHNFE
CREBIAETERAGEETH - AEER
RELHEHMBINGRZ MG - BB
MEBAEFERRAGB ARHFEEZR
RUEGERAZYICTHR I EE IR - BH
ZERFEFELBERREZHEANMG
Bt AR AR TR A

st T RERR
BRARRRREHAREERER T 8
BT —MBFEAHEERAENREE
fEREABBENEERR R THEHR
2 H A EBJORR T Xk «

2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its items of property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of items of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technical innovations and its competitor
actions. Management will increase the depreciation charge
where useful lives are shorter than those previously estimated, or
it will write off or write down technically obsolete assets that have
been abandoned.

The carrying value of an item of property, plant and equipment
is reviewed for impairment when events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be
recoverable in accordance with the accounting policy as
disclosed in the relevant part of this section. The recoverable
amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is calculated
as the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use, the calculations of which involve the use of estimates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—ZT-hFRA=TH
4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories

Management reviews the condition of inventories of the Group
and makes provision against obsolete and slow-moving
inventory items which are identified as no longer suitable for
sale or use. Management estimates the net realisable value for
such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. The Group carries out an
inventory review at the end of each reporting period and makes
provision against obsolete and slow-moving items. Management
reassesses the estimation at the end of each reporting period.

The identification of obsolete and slow-moving inventory
items requires the use of judgements and estimates. Where
the expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact on the carrying values of inventories and
the write-down of inventories recognised in the periods in which
such estimates have been changed. The carrying amount of
inventories as at 30 June 2019 was HK$25,061,000 (2018:
HK$19,849,000).

Current tax and deferred tax

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions in accordance with the prevailing tax regulations and
makes tax provision accordingly. However, judgement is required
in determining the Group’s provision for income taxes as there
are many transactions and calculations of which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact on the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period
in which such determination is made. The carrying amounts
of income tax recoverable and income tax payable in the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019
were HK$272,000 and HK$9,527,000 (2018: HK$807,000 and
HK$13,062,000), respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Withholding taxes

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 5%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to eamnings after 31 December 2007. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
eamings generated from 1 January 2008.

As at 30 June 2019, the Group had unremitted earnings
amounting to approximately HK$59,010,000 (2018:
HK$57,639,000) that are subject to withholding taxes. In the
opinion of the directors, the Company is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is not probable
that the subsidiaries established in Mainland China will distribute
such eamnings in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no deferred
tax has been recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on distribution of unremitted earmnings by the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of eamings
generated.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. They are tested for impairment when there are
indicators that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An
impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.
The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-
in-use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating
unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

5. OPERATING SEGMENT
INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group has only one reportable
operating segment, which is the manufacturing and sale of
printing products.

Geographical information
(@) Revenue from external customers

it EER
(a) REINBES LS

2019 2018

—E-hEF —EN\F

HK$’000 HK$000

FEx FET

Hong Kong B 198,076 170,728
United States of America ESE 45,628 62,038
Others Hitb 38,333 37,429
282,037 270,195

The revenue information above is based on the locations of
the customers.

(b) Non-current assets
No geographical information is presented as over 90% of
the Group's non-current assets are located in Mainland
China as at 30 June 2019 and 2018.

Information about major customers
Revenue from each of the major customers, which amounted to
10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below:

FimREEMTVIRBEEP A S
5l o

(b) FARBEE
R-FB-NFER_F-NFRA=+
H - NEEBOO%HIZEMEN B ET L
R BEA - RIWE25HRER -

IBEFNESH
REEEERS (ERYES10%HA L) 8
WESIHT :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Customer A BEA 52,852 53,312
Customer B ZFB 32,093 37,342
Customer C ZFEC 37,574 33,033
Customer D ZFED 39,597 N/AZN 3 F

LLess than 10% of the Group’s revenue
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI RE

30 June 2019

—FT-NFAA=1+H
6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME 6. WEREAMKA
An analysis of the Group'’s revenue and other income is as Was R EMB ARSI T
follows:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —ZE—)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Revenue Wz
Revenue from contracts with customers BEEA M 282,037 -
Sale of goods HEEmD - 270,195
282,037 270,195
Revenue from contracts with customers L= e g
Disaggregated revenue information 2IFBAER
HK$’000
For the year ended 30 June 2019 BE-_ZE—-hEXA=1+HLEE FET
Sale of goods transferred at a point in time HERN S EREEEENE MR 282,037
Geographical markets HEmS 2019
—Z2-hF
HK$’000
FET
Hong Kong 5 198,076
United States of America =15 45,628
Others Hi 38,333
282,037
Performance obligations BHEE

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is upon delivery of goods and
payment is generally due within one month, extending up to three
months for major customers, from delivery.

BRRAEERENEENERRANT -

HEEm
BHOBEEZXNEMEEX - M B

=EA(BRNEREFH) -

2019 2018
—g2-nE -2 \F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEIT

Other income Heblg A
Interest income B U A 3,640 2,343
Others Hity 1 8
3,641 2,351
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—ZE—h&FXA=+H
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BREEADER
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEBERBRBANEFE NG (GTA) :
(crediting):
2019 2018
—E-NF T\
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Cost of inventories sold BEFER A 180,913 179,658
Depreciation e 9,608 8,841
Minimum lease payments under operating leases KEHE  REREMNR 12,151 10,436
Auditor's remuneration % SR & B 1,337 1,272
Employee benefit expense (excluding directors’ EBEERNEY(TBEEER
and chief executive's remuneration): TEBRE O E)
Wages and salaries TERF® 58,425 53,735
Pension scheme contributions RS EEIHER 4,642 (182)
63,067 518,558
Foreign exchange differences, net* BE N EFE 158 335
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE BENREEBNEE
plant and equipment* 42 12
Write-down of inventories™ MomF & 668 -
# Cost of inventories sold includes HK$61,532,000 (2018: # BEEFERABIEG1,532,0008 L (=F

HK$50,095,000) of employee benefit expense, depreciation and
minimum lease payments under operating leases, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above for each
of these types of expenses.

These items are included in “Other operating expenses, net” on
the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

** This item is included in “Cost of sales” on the face of the .
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

416 SUN HING PRINTING HOLDINGS LIMITED % RENRHERAR AT / Annual Report /2 i 2018/ 20

20

— \%E : 50,095,000 7T ) #y1& 8 1& %/
X ERKEAEZRERAENK(E
FAENRZESERIEENRER
&) o

ZEHAAGARBERREN [ HE
BRSOFE] -

ZHEBAGABEEREEMN [HEK
NI

19



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8.
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (0), (c)
and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

BE R AT B

RIELETARE - FBQAEHIFE383(1)() »
o) O RMERAB (FEEEFEER)
KPR R M FINE B 1T B E B
R

2019 2018

—E-hF —F-)N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE FET

Fees aken 816 534
Other emoluments: Hihfl g -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EENEYET 19,724 15,608

Pension scheme contributions BIRDEHEIH R 36 36

19,760 15,644

20,576 16,178

(@) Independent non-executive directors
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

(a) BUFHTES
FAXNTEULIFRTESTNERS W

during the year were as follows: N
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry REiE 112 78
Dr. Chu Po Kuen Louis SRR 112 78
Mr. Ho Yuk Chi fAIgRE % E 112 78
336 234

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2018: Nil). Mr. Ng Sze Yuen Terry, Dr. Chu Po Kuen, Louis
and Mr. Ho Yuk Chi were appointed as independent non-
executive directors of the Company on 9 October 2017.

FABEBRABELIFATESENE
EHE(ZF—N\F: &) RETk
£ RERBLERAFEEER-F
—tF+ANBRZERARR B
FRTES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH
8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF 8. EERTHEARTM =)
EXECUTIVE’S REMUNERATION
(Continued)
(b) Executive directors (b) HITES
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme
Fees in kind contributions Total
e RER Bk
we BWER HE #m
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FAT
2019 —B-NF
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang BREERE 120 9,833 - 9,953
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond REELE 120 1,910 = 2,030
Mr. Chan Chi Ming REREE 120 1,919 18 2,057
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* REBRIL A 120 6,062 18 6,200
480 19,724 36 20,240
2018 —B-N\F
Executive directors: RITES :
Mr. Chan Peter Tit Sang B E S AE 75 7,710 = 7785
Mr. Chan Chun Sang Desmond BREELE 75 1,530 - 1,605
Mr. Chan Chi Ming R LA 75 1,542 18 1,635
Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin* BREEREA" 7% 4,826 18 4,919
300 15,608 36 15,944
* Mr. Chan Kenneth Chi Kin, who acts as an executive * PREBEERERRBNITESR
director of the Company, is also the chief executive officer TR, -
of the Company.
There was no arrangement under which a director waived ERN - BEEREII YRR ERRS
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. RE T ZFE o
During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group to FER AEEPERES S SR
the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the VE AN A 7N £2 8] 5k 0 A B ) 55 B o B
Group or as compensation for loss of office. BhaE o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019

—ZE—hFXA=1+H
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. EEBREHFES
The five highest paid employees during the year included four FR AZEaHEERFENA(ZZE—N
(2018: four) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out F:MUE)ES - HEFMFBEN LT
in note 8 above. Detalls of the remuneration for the year of the 8o FAMBT —R(ZE—N\F : —R)IF
remaining one (2018: one) non-director, highest paid employee BEERAHEENFIFBSIEHNT
are as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF T )N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EEREYEF 726 668
Performance related bonuses FIRMABEIEAT 50 203
Pension scheme contributions EREFHEIER 18 18
794 889

The number of non-director, highest paid employee whose
remuneration fell within the following band is as follows:

BRUATHMAERNIIEEEZESHFEEA
FE

2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-)N\F
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
non-director, highest paid employee as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FRAKEREAFESTHESHEEX
M ERIMARSEE AR IEE)
SkEERAIE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-NFXRA=+H
10. INCOME TAX 10. fT5%
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman lslands BREFRSHEREBHERRESHRIIRE
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in B ASEBERZERIARRHMEM
such jurisdictions. Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at g8 - & - BENEHERREBE
the rate of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable A B ETE R BUR R R 16.5% (ZF — N\
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. The PRC tax has F:16.56%) 2 ERGHERME - PEBIIAT)
been provided at the rate of 25% (2018; 25%) on the estimated BLRA R B 2 A A A BT P AR B i A 1R 259% (=
assessable profits arising in the PRC. T—\F : 26%) 2 T REHR B -
2019 2018
—E-NF —EN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current — Hong Kong NER—FB
Charge for the year FARX 6,116 5,006
Under/(over) provision in prior years BAFERERR(BREEE) (23) 105
Current — PRC ZNER— R
Charge for the year FARE 2,736 1,378
Deferred (note 21) ERE(HaE21) (75) (60)
Total tax charge for the year FAKIBR R 8,754 6,429
A reconclliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax BEFIEHRIBEARBH NN HRGEH
at the statutory rate for the tax expense at the effective tax rate is YEBEERM RO EHE L HENT -
as follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Profit before tax 6 B4 BT Y4 A 41,006 15,446
Tax at the statutory tax rate of EBETRAEEEAEEREATED
different jurisdictions 18 6,768 3,492
Lower tax rate enacted by local authority 5 s BEA R ER R R 165 -
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BT FER RN AT IR AR
previous years (23) 105
Income not subject to tax BERTUA (554) (1,589)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR R S 2,408 4,479
Others HAth (10) (68)
Tax charge at the Group's effective tax rate BAREBEBRHRE21.3%
of 21.3% (2018: 41.6%) (ZZT—)\F : 41.6%):TE
BB 52 8,754 6,429
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019

—E-AFEXNA=1+AH

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2019 2018
—E-nE  —T)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Interim — HK1.0 cent (2018: Nil) T E — S E R0

per ordinary share (ZZ—N\F : F) 4,800 -

Proposed final — HK2.5 cents EEARE - gREBER2.5E
(2018: HK3.0 cents) per ordinary share ZF—)\F : 3.081) 12,000 14,400
16,800 14,400

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of the basic eamnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 480,000,000 (2018 434,630,137) in issue during the year.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the year
ended 30 June 2018 is calculated based on the assumption
that the capitalisation issue in connection with the listing of the
Company had been completed on 1 July 2017.

No adjustment has been made to the basic eamings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 30 June 2019 and 2018
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in issue during the years ended 30 June 2019
and 2018.

12.

AEERZBRABRE AN ERELRBF KR
G LERRRBRROERTAMEER -

;ﬁﬂﬁﬂi*ﬁ%ﬁk%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ&
|

BRERBFOSREIIBEARR A RES
EARGEFEEZMNERFRNERITLEBRMN
hn#E S 5 8480,000,0008 (=B — )\ £ ¢
434,630,187 FHE - BHEZT—NFEX
A=+ HILFENLBRIMNEFHETIR
BRESEARNQR ETMETHERNERET
ER-_T—+tFtA—BEKMm:tE -

HRAEEHZE_ZT-NFER_ZT-N\F
NAZTHLEFEIBECETEEEBEE
B A EABEESEBEHHBE_—_F
—NEFERZFE-NFRA=ZTHLEFEM
2N ERERRFIELRE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—FT-NFARA=1+H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE

ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS

OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are

12. X2 REFEAELERE

Hg)

BREALEERNIIRE T SHAE

based on:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Earnings ZF
Profit attributable to equity holders AR iR E AR
of the Company 32,252 9,017
2019 2018
—E-hF —FT-N\F
Shares iiavil
Weighted average number of ordinary FARD T L BRINEFSE
shares in issue during the years 480,000,000 434,630,137
HK cents HK cents
AL A
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted BERREE 6.72 2.07
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 5% - BERRE

30 June 2019

—E-NFARA=TH

Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
improve- Plant and and office Motor
Buildings ments machinery equipment vehicles Total
G £BR
EF HEXE HER#E BRERE RE E-hy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn FEn FEn &7 &7
30 June 2019 “E-NEXA=TH
At30 June 2018 and RZE-\EXA=THR
at1 July 2018; “3-\EtA-R:
Cost KA 449 398 159,579 12,526 9,720 182,672
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (364) (398) (111,290) (6,963) (8,192) (127,207)
Net carrying amount R HE 85 - 48,289 5,563 1,528 55,465
A1 July 2018, netof accumulated  R=E—N\ELA—H 11
depreciation BREGNE 85 - 48,289 5,563 1,528 55,465
Additions ANE - - 8,051 1,672 1,080 10,803
Disposals = - - (216) - (53) (269)
Depreciation provided during FERRERE
the year (10) - (6,683) (1,073) (042) (9,608)
Bxchange realignment ERHRE @) - (1,975) (178) 37) (2,194)
At 30 June 2019, et of RZE-n&~A=TH"
acoumulated depreciation Nk E:4E 71 - 47,466 5,084 1,576 54,197
At30 June 2019; RZE-nEXA=TRH:
Cost AR 431 398 159,585 13,797 9,481 183,692
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (360) (398) (112,119) (8,713) (7,905) (129,495)
Net camying amount REZE Il - 47,466 5,084 1,576 54,197
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BERRZE®)

(Continued)
Fumiture,
Leasenold fixtures
improve- Plant and and office Motor
Buildings ments machinery equipment vehicles Total
fil %2R
B HERE  BEREE  BOEEE a2 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T & T T T
30 June 2018 “E2-N\FRAZTH
At duly 2017: RZZ—t5+A-H:
Cost KA 426 398 142,669 8316 9,502 161,311
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (335) (398) (100,204) (5,330) (7341) (113,608)
Net camying amount BEFE 91 - 42,465 2,986 2,161 47,708
At1Jduly 2017, netof acoumulated  R=E—+E+ AR
depreciation BRE5TE 91 - 42 465 2,986 2,161 47703
Additions NE = - 9,882 4,090 264 14,236
Disposals k-3 = = 82 U - 89
Depreciation provided during FERRERE
the year (10) - (6,305) (1,575) (951) (8,841)
Exchange realignment fEH A% 4 - 2329 69 54 2,456
At 30 June 2018, net of RZE-\E~A=TH"
acoumulated depreciation Nk 2iting 85 - 48,289 5563 1528 55,465
At 30 June 2018; RZE-\F~A=1H:
Cost A 449 398 159,579 12,626 9,720 182,672
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (364) (399) (111,290 (6,969 (8,192 (127,207)
Net carrying amount REZE 85 - 48,289 5,563 1528 56,465
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019

—E-AFAAZTH
14. INTANGIBLE ASSET 14. B EE
Club
membership
S
HK$'000
FAET
At 1 July 2017, 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 RZE—+tF+tA—H —T—N\FEXA=1+H"
and 30 June 2019 —E-NFtA—BERZE-—AFAA=1H 2,700

15

The Group has classified the acquired club membership as an
intangible asset with an indefinite useful life in accordance with
HKAS 38 Intangible Assets. This is supported by the fact that the
club membership has no expiry date and is expected to generate
future economic benefits to the Group indefinitely. The Group
re-evaluates the useful life of the club membership each year to
determine whether events or circumstances continue to support
the view of the indefinite useful life of the asset.

AEBERBEEB G ERIEBRELE
ERMRBNERLTSRIBRABEREMR
REHNETEE - b VAR BETSE
WEEmAY  BEEHARAREEES
BERQEMS - AREESFEHTHEL
HERENERFH UETEERFMHNK
BhBEFZEERABSEEMAFS -

INVENTORIES 15. 7 &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —=—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials AR 9,707 9,383
Work in progress RS 6,986 6,045
Finished goods SR T 8,368 4,421
25,061 19,849
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-hFEXA=F+H
16. TRADE RECEIVABLES 16. E S EWFIE
2019 2018
—e-nE  —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE 54,541 51,431

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit. The credit period is generally one month, extending up
to three months for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a policy to manage
its risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

$EIEEE%ZJEE’JT’3%1\%?&I£E§EM§%

cEEHBEA—EA  EFLERE=
flﬂ(ﬁi&;z@ﬁﬁﬁ—) cBHREBEFEES
EERE - AEBB IR EHEREERE
WRIEME RS BT - WRBHELE
BHER SHSEHRBSREEEEHE
B o REBWAREE S EWFIBERE
EAMERREMRSEETIR -5
JEWRIBERFT S ©

RBEHR  REXZAH2INEZE
WRIBER BREC AT A0 T -

2019 2018

—E-hF T )\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —@RA 24,865 24,334
1 to 2 months —ZE=MEA 21,551 17,512
2 to 3 months M2 =& H 6,816 7,576
Over 3 months HBiE=1EA 1,309 2,009
54,541 51,431
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Impairment under HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 30 June 2019

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns. The
calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for more
than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits
the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade
receivables. The expected credit loss rate for the Group’s
trade receivables is minimal for all of the above bands of trade
receivables.

Impairment under HKAS 39 for the year
ended 30 June 2018

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at 30 June 2018
that were not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired under HKAS 39 is as follows:

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

16. EZ W FIE (&)

EZE-NEXRB=THLEE
REFBMBEREENFRFE
REREBE  NEBFEHRBEBERRT
REAMASTEEREEEE - BExE
REBEUBBEERNSETE 5 H4E
RIS EAR 8 o At E R T = g4
R EXEHNEERRREBHTESH
RBAE SN & ATIRR R RSB R
BRAMABREZSER - —BMEs  B5
FEU K IB N R AR B — E B T A MY - B
TZRRBEIHNTIES o

AEBEBBOER BB BHREEAFE
HRENBREEBRERE - L EL
R ERZRYARAE2HMEHE
BEE AKEBESRURENRHEER
EiER Y Eal pr A S A B 5 B WA
EHMTARE -

BE-Z-NEXA=1HLEE
REEBEHEREIHREE
R-ZE—N\EAA=+H REESSH
% 1| 25 30 5% 3 4 1 71 ok B2 88 6 4R B R E 1
B SR BHBRE A AT T -

2018

—E-)N\EF

HK$'000

FET

Neither past due nor impaired N 48 80 B s R (B 43,120
Less than 1 month past due BE—E AT 6,264
1 to 2 months past due BH—Z=/MEA 1,008
Over 2 months FR{E H LA £ 954
51,431

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related to a
number of independent customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

3 48 780 2 SR (B 0 FE R TS & % 28 3L
BF - MKEIL BT IR R o

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
was necessary in respect of these balances as there had not
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances were
still considered fully recoverable.

EBRHBERBENRKFIES RS RBL
BP MEEFRAEEERIFEFLE -
ERNBERR  ARAREZTAR/TLIZ
SHESBTIRAERE AREEERLE
EXBBHRERDEE SR 2D -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—ZE—h&FXA=+H
17. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND 17. A RIE ZEeRHEMERR
OTHER RECEIVABLES I8
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Prepayments TR FRIE 2,511 7,416
Deposits and other receivables e Rk EMERGRIE 16,440 7,079
18,951 14,495
Less: Non-current prepayments and deposits & : JERENTEN KB ik & (6,764) (5,048)
12,187 9,447

Deposits and other receivables mainly represent rental deposits,
deposits with suppliers and third parties and value-added
tax recoverable. An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date by applying a loss rate approach with reference to
the historical loss record of the Group. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. The expected credit losses for the
Group’s deposits and other receivables is minimal.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

wehEMREFRIEERERS - #
EERE=TEERATKREIEER - RE
BERH  AKRERABEREELZER
SENBEBBRCHEETRESN - B8
R E I R F S B A RBRE AT
NERFEBERRNTER - AEEIZE K
Hit RUGRIAM TR REEEREN

R EEGEBIRE - EAESRTE
EH) S BVE E W ML B B R RS
YRR -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

1. RERREEF/YURZRH

RESTRICTED CASH R

2019 2018

—F-NE T )F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHETT FAET

Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITES 31,068 15,312
Time deposits TEHATE 3K 149,295 163,484
Wealth management products* BB G 5,690 11,861
186,053 190,657
Less: restricted cash for banking facilities A RITRERNZR IR E (11,402) (1,560)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEEY 174,651 189,097

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash equivalents
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to HK$9,704,000 (2018: HK$13,877,000). The RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and eam interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy bank with no
recent history of default.

The principal and interest amounts of the wealth management
products held were guaranteed. The Group used the wealth
management products primarily to enhance its return on fixed
deposits. The wealth management products were purchased for
varying periods of between one day and three months depending
on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earmed
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The wealth
management products were purchased from a creditworthy bank
with no recent history of default.

RREHR  REBUARB(TARE])
FTEMRE KRB EEEY A, 704,000 T
(ZZ— )\£ : 13,877,000/ L) - AR
FMEAmEBARMEY - A BIEFS
B A Hb H P B FR AR 5 DA K A B - S BE R A
EEEMTE  ANEEABBFRETINE
EBMBTEARELBRAREME

RITHASRERTARTHERNERZH
FIREGRERA S - BEAE BFRTDRNF —
AER=-EANFHHREEFE(BTFAKE
MERIREFR) - WIRAENEHERF
KA RBERAE - |RITERRESRERT
ENEE R B ST RSV IRTT

* MFEMERNASRNE RO EE

R AEEEREVERDEIERRSH
& TE 77 0 [ e o P RS E A IR B E ) HARR
NF—AE=ZEAATE  RFREENE
BASHRME - WIRAREHEDRFR
FEFERAE - ARBEEERIFAYTE
MR KR HIRITBE IRV ER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

19. TRADE PAYABLES

19. ESE{NFIE
RIFEHFHR  BBEZZEHHENNEFE

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

NFRBERREE DT T

2019 2018

—E-hEF —ET-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Within 1 month —MRAR 8,780 9,612
1 to 2 months —ZMEA 7,013 6,765
2 to 3 months MZE=1EA 183 990
Over 3 months HBiE=18A 27 44
16,003 17,411

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally

settled within three months.

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

EHRNRETHERBER=EA RS

fit o

20. HhENRIERESTE A

2019 2018
—E-hEF —F-)\F

Notes HK$’000 HK$000

Hiat FHET FET

Other payables HE M 5RE (@) 202 2,086
Contract liabilities EHa’E (b) 1,442 -
Accruals EsrE A 15,406 13,096
17,050 15,182

(a) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an average term

of one month.

(o) Contract liabilities of HK$1,442,000 (1 July 2018: HK$564,000)
include short-term advances received to deliver goods. The
increase in contract liabilities in 2019 was mainly due to the
increase in short-term advances received from customers in
relation to the sale of goods at the end of the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MR MY et

30 June 2019

—FT-NFAA=1+H
21. DEFERRED TAX 21, ELERIE
The movements of the deferred tax asset and liability during the FRREEHREEEREENEFSWNT ¢
year are as follows:
Deferred tax asset EEBEEE
Deductible
temporary
differences
gk
BRESR
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2017 R-_ZE—tE+H—H 127
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss during the year Mk AFRBRNELEHE A Z10)

(note 10) (33)

At 30 June 20718 and 1 July 2018 RZZ-N\FA=THERK
—E-\FtA—H 94
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year SFAFRERNELEHEKZE10)

(note 10) 55
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—-NFRA=1H 149
Deferred tax liability EEHEEE

Depreciation

allowance in

excess of

related

depreciation

B AR E

WiTERE

HK$'000

FAET

At 1 July 2017 RZT—tF+HA—H 243
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year HAERNBRNIELERIBEHZ10)

(note 10) (93)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZE—N\FSA=Z+HEHEK

—2-N\FtA—H 150
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year HAERNBRENIELERIEFZ710)

(note 10) (20)

At 30 June 2019 RZE—-NAF/A=1H 130
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

21.

22,

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax liability (continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established
in Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to eamings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between
Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For
the Group, the applicable rate is 5%. The Group is therefore
liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of eamings
generated from 1 January 2008.

At 30 June 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such eamings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount
of temporary differences associated with investments in the
subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities
have not been recognised totalled approximately HK$2,950,000
(2018: HK$2,882,000) as at 30 June 2019.

21, EEBIE ()

ELERAREE)
RETECEMBSHRE  ERER TR
BAARIINECENINEREENRE
BUI0%TEHH - ZREH_TENF—
A—HREX  ERAR_—TTLF+_H
=T BZENEF - K E i RN E
REENRAER ZHFTERBERLY - B
EROTENBERAIRD - BLAKE - &
RBER/E% - AL AKEBAHZER T E
AR IOMBEBARL —TENFE—A—
BRELER BN TR EREBMTAIR -

RZZ-NFRA=1TH HEREEE
A FR B )3t P RR P JB 1 B R BEE H 28 A (R 4
M) RN TENBERREERIE - &%
RE - RAREK  ZEMEBRRTKA
BRREBEHEAEN R_FT-AFR A=
B - I A SRR AT B TR B & A B R 3 B
BRARBKREMPRNERZERBLR
#92,950,000/ 7T (ZZF — N\ & : 2,882,000
BT °

SHARE CAPITAL 22, B
2019 2018
—g-1E  TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Authorised: ETE
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares 10,000,000,0008%
of HK$0.01 each BREEO.01E LA B 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER :
480,000,000 ordinary shares 480,000,0008%
of HK$0.01 each BREEO.01E LA L B 4,800 4,800
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22. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as
follows:

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

22. BA& (%)
ARRREEHOHEMT -

Number of Nominal value

ordinary of ordinary
shares shares
ZEBREE LRREE
Notes HK$'000
M FET
As at 1 July 2017 R-_ZE—+tF+A—H 1,000 =
Capitalisation issue BT @ 359,999,000 3,600
Initial public offering BRAREE ) 120,000,000 1,200
As at 30 June 2018, 1 July 2018 RZZE—N\FA=TH "
and 30 June 2019 “T-N\FtA—HK

—E-NEFAA=TH 480,000,000 4,800

Notes: Bt -

(a) Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting held on 9 October
2017, the directors were authorised to allot and issue a total
of 369,999,000 shares credited as fully paid at par to the
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company at the close of business on 9 October 2017
in proportion to their respective shareholdings. These allotment
and capitalisation issues were conditional on the share premium
account being credited as a result of the issue of new shares to
the public in connection with the Company's initial public offering
as detailed in note (b) below.

(b) In connection with the Company’s initial public offering,
120,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of
HK$1.38 per share for a total consideration, before expenses, of
HK$165,600,000. The proceeds of HK$1,200,000, representing
the par value, were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HK$164,400,000 before share issue
expenses of HK$15,147,000 were credited to the share premium
account. The Company's shares have been listed on the Stock
Exchange since 16 November 2017.

@ WRE-ZZF—tFTANBRITHREESS
AE EZEBREAR=ZZT—tFTAL
HEERBARKA AR RBRER M
RERZRHES BNEFREOIREER R &
174 ££3859,999,000 % A BRI A& R M
B - ZERERENBEITATRGD
HEEREARQRE X QRS (R T XM
(D) FFl) (AR RBEITHARG 815 # AR
% FAEE -

b)) ABAETAIAIERAHRZE
120,000,000 8% & B [ {E0.01 7% 7T #9 A% 17
ERTR1C8HETHERET  GARE
(FBRFASZ BT ) A165,600,0008 7T © A5
FKIE 1,200,000 7T (BIE B ) 5t AR A A
BEAR - FISRFTIE 3RIB 164,400,000 7T (K
A% 5 217 £ 15,147,000% 75 ) 5t A
B HER - ARRKRGA-_T—tF
+— A+ "BERERERF LT -
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B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

23. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium
The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration paid
for the reorganisation, capitalisation issue and initial public
offering in 2017.

(b) Other reserve
The balance of the other reserve represents the difference
between the aggregate of the paid up share capital of
the subsidiaries acquired and the nominal value of the
share capital of the Company issued in exchange therefor
pursuant to the reorganisation in 2017.

(c) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve comprises all relevant
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations.
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23. f#E

AEBRAFEIBEFENHERFER
EHTWMIIINGEEDZEBHRA -

(a) EtPimfE
M E EEERTROMEESER =
TLFEMEMR  BAEBETRER
RABEMHOREZRMOEE -

(b) Hfttf#fE
BE-T—LFNEM - HoHERS
BIFEWEBHB AR 2 SRR R
BAR R B ERAN D ETR
REEZER

(c) ERKBRHE
VEE . B 6 4 0 B AR B S0 B RS BT
R E TR I 2% -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R

30 June 2019

—E-hFSA=TH
24. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 24. ZEHERERME
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from METBHEENAERH

financing activities

Amount due
to a director

Bif—2E=
;MIE
HK$'000
FET
At 1 July 2017 RZZE—+F+H—H 6,434
Changes in balance with a director H— 2B ENESRE (6,431)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZB—/\EFESA=THBK
:2 NF+HA—H 3
Changes in balance with a director —HBREBEENEREH (©)
At 30 June 2019 RZZ—NFRA=TH =
25. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT 5. R&EHELTH
As lessee ERAEMEA
The Group leases certain of its office properties, staff quarters AEEREBECEHELHRAESE THA
and factory under operating lease arrangements. Leases for EYE BIBEESLKE - WEHEFH
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 3 years. EEANT—ZE=F -
At 30 June 2019, the Group had total future minimum lease RZZFE—NFARA=1+H AEERET
payments under non-cancellable operating leases faling due as ARESCEHEN R REEBENKER
follows: R EIERIER T ¢
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Within one year —FER 15,511 11,488
In the second 1o fifth years, inclusive —ERF(BEEEMFE) 20,830 14,671
36,341 26,159
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B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

26. COMMITMENTS
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
25 above, the Group had the following capital commitments at
the end of the reporting period:

26. it
B b SO 3F 0557 2% it A0 45 48 LB AR S
ML - AEEARTERERE :

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAB AR BAE -
Plant and machinery R K 2 11,695 1,787

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@)  In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following

27. BB AR5
(@) BTHEBREEMIBOFERGRLS
o AEBERERNE A TEBT X

transactions with related parties during the year: 2
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Rental expenses paid to related companies {4 T BBt A T E R X 2,586 2,586
Rental expense paid to a related party ST RE TSRS 396 99

The rental expenses were paid based on tenancy
agreements entered into between a subsidiary of the
Group and related companies/a related party.

(o)  Outstanding balances with related parties
The amount due to a director was unsecured, interest-free,
repayable on demand and of non-trade nature.

BRI IR A B A 752
AT BE T A E R
fif o

(b) HAREERRE A
BN—REFHAREER 28 -
BREREENIFEHIEE -

= 2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DUE R

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

27. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27. BB AR 5F (#)

(Continued)
(c) Compensation of key management personnel of the ) AEBEZTEEEAENHMN
Group
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
Salaries and other short-term FehHMEHEBEF
employee benefits 20,540 16,142

BB ET B 36 36
TNFEEEEABNFIAE

Pension scheme contributions

Total compensation paid to

key management personnel 20,576 16,178

BERESMTRARFMNE —TF
BER M B REMES -

Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note 8 to the financial
statements.

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
statements as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

28. REHE»HNEMITE
R BMEERN RS BRMETENT

Financial
assets at Loans
amortised and
cost receivables
R 6 R AR
Sl BR Y Bk
EHMEE WA
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade receivables B 5N IE 54,541 51,431
Financial assets included in prepayments, SHAFEREUE - RS R EMEK
deposits and other receivables RIEN S A E 16,440 7,079
Restricted cash SR EIRE 11,402 1,560
Cash and cash equivalents B RESZEY 174,651 189,097
257,034 249,167
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
REBERAIENESREE
2019 2018
—E-AF —2-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trade payables B S EMNFIE 16,003 17,411
Financial liabilities included in other T AE A BT RRIE R EET B
payables and accruals SRAE 8,571 6,865
Amount due to a director BN —REERIAE - 3
24,574 24,279
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DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

29. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

30

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, trade receivables, trade payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals and an amount due to a director approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of non-current deposits have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities, and were assessed to approximate to their
carrying amounts.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group'’s principal financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, deposits, trade and other payables, restricted
cash and cash and cash equivalents. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group'’s
operations.

Itis, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group’s
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be untaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are
foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below.

29.

30.

EHIANAFERQAFEE
1

BREEENE R RRSEFEY  XR
HIRE  BEHEWHIE  EHENKE
BNRIE - B hEMRRKIEAN S B
BE  HMBENFBAREFERANS AR
BENREN - REERENLFEER
FREERE  DERHRNZEFTAZHA
EEFTEL »

FERBF RO R FETIZE RS EEUE
K FEERBR RS TEHAHRNT AR A
ARMMEFRBRRRASRESHE -
W sFHEEREERS

B b E IR B AR R BUGR

AEBTENSRIABEE S KHME
WHIR - 2e EHREMENKEA X
RHEREUNRRELRAEEEY - ZF2
BTENTIERNREEAEELLHNE
BF -

REFELBFEA  NEBEZBRR T
EERMTACEE  MUETAE—EHRX -

AEESHTEEEANEIERR SINER
2 FEERREADECAR BEFSE
B ERBERESBEZSBROBEK
HfaanT o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currency risk

The Group has foreign currency exposures, which mainly arise
from monetary assets and liabilities held in currencies other than
the Hong Kong dollar. The Group currently has no particular
hedging vehicles to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.
The Group periodically reviews monetary assets and liabilities
held in currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar to ensure that
net exposure is kept at an acceptable level.

Since the exchange rate of HK$ is pegged to USD, the Group
does not expect any significant movement in the USD and HK$
exchange rate.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in the RMB exchange rates at the end of the
reporting period, with all other variables held constant, of the
Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the fair value of
monetary assets and liabilities) and the Company's equity (due to
changes in the fair value of monetary assets and liabilities).

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

0. KEREEEERBE )

S EE L B

AEBEEINERRR - TERBABITIA
SIEERBENEREEREE - A5ER
A0 S8 R R R T R RN R -
AEEEGERBRTNBTNIINEERFER
EREENBE  HEAENFRERERS
RAIE IR o

mPNETTEREE T - A AEER
HEXTRETEXIGHIRERNEANLD -

TERMAHERARBEZTNSEAEE
B RAAEMEHRIETENBERT -
HAEBENBEPRROBHAEN (ARE
HEENBBEZAVEED) RARAER
(HREBEERABZAFEES)NK
RE DT o

Increase/
Increase/ (decrease) Increase/
(decrease) in profit (decrease)
in rate before tax in equity*
E= RR 0 A& F s
ERHCRR) i CRd) #i/ Gl
% HK$'000 HK$
% FET BT
As at 30 June 2019 RZZE-NFRA=TH
If HK$ weakens against RMB HWATHEARBEE 5 309 -
If HK$ strengthens against RMB 438 7T H A R EETHE (5) (309) -
As at 30 June 2018 RZE—-N\F-A=+H
If HK$ weakens against RMB HETH ARKERE 5 2,320 -
If HKS strengthens against RMB & 7T 5 A RIEFHE ©) (2,320) -
* Excluding retained profits * TEEREB R
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DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 30. U KEREEEEREK 2

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that only well-established
customers will be considered for open account terms and the
approval of credit terms is subject to stringent credit check
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30
June 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 30 June 2019. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

EERE

AEBEETRNY  FERENF=ZTX
5 REBNBREREHELIEANES
ZRBRGRAGEEROIERBHERE
EERERERF - I BRARERIFE
EERAKENZERRRIY TEX -

R-ZB-AEFEAAZ+HNESARBRE
RIEER
TRINRERAREEERRNEEER
LfERNsE=EERR  NDEEERE
HEH (BRIFEFMNLBERARE N
EEEMERN) R=ZF—AFA=+AK
FREBRIHETE - M2 2BEATRE
ERMREAE -

12-month Lifetime
expected expected
credit losses credit losses
1218 A 24
AHEEFE BUGEESE
Simplified
Stage 1 approach
P& B2 1 [GE(#73
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FET FET
Trade receivables* & 5 W R I - 54,541 54,541
Financial assets included in SAFEMNROE - BER
prepayments, deposits and Hth JE U SR IE B
other receivables CRIEE
— Normal** —EE* 16,440 - 16,440
Restricted cash ZRHRE
— Not yet past due — (R A HA 11,402 - 11,402
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMRESEZEY
— Not yet past due — i ARBEA 174,651 - 174,651
202,493 54,541 257,034
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 30

June 2019 (Continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment, information based on the provision matrix
is disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements.

. The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables is considered to be ‘normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 30 June 2018

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, and
deposits and other receivables, arises from default of the
counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying
amounts of these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. The Group had
certain concentrations of credit risk as the trade receivables in
terms of the following percentages were due from the Group’s
largest external customer and the Group’s five largest external
customers out of the Group's total trade receivables:

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

30. I EREEEERBE &)

FEERK &)

R-ZE-NEXNA=THENESEABRE

RIEER (&)

- RAEERAMAECRHENE S EK
FEME @ ERBEEENERBEERY
mEME16 -

o BEFARMBUR - RE REAMEWKIERN
CREEYEAPABREENRASR
AEMNERRRB VL EREEREEMN
B HEEERREARIER] BRI £
MAENGEELERERAS (A5 -

RZB-NEXNA=ZTENBERAK
AEBNEMESREENEERBR(FER
SRESEEY  IRIBESRIZSRE
fhFEFIB) REBEFHBARKIE - M=
ERERZET ENRAEE -

HRAEEEFERZR  FEREFNE=
ARG HEBEER - AKEEETHE
BEEHER  ERATESERRIEGR
SEEZREFIFLENB DL IHASE
EHANSES RAEBTRINBEE R
&

2019 2018
—®-hE —T)\F
% %
Due from the Group's largest JEW AL B R AINBRF
external customer 25 29
Due from the Group’s five largest WA ER R AINBEF
external customers 73 64

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 16
to the financial statements.

FRAASEKXEE ZREFRENEERR
B Z B BBRRBENM B RRMEE6 -
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B REERAR FEE

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continvec)

Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of funds generated from

operations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

30. I EREEEERBE &)

RBEZER
AEENBEARBERAEENSES
EES 2 RHEEREEE 2 MRS T -

SERNHEHRRER G ORI HA
SREEINHERMAT

3 to less
Less than than 12
On demand 3 months months Total
3Z12{8A
REX DSH3EA AN wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET T
2019 —E-NF
Trade payables B SRR F0E 15,034 930 39 16,003
Financial liabilities included in ST AE M fE S Z0E K fE A
other payables and accruals BRMNERBE - 4,535 4,036 8,571
15,034 5,465 4,075 24,574
2018 —E-N\F
Trade payables B 5 M FE 16,868 534 9 17,411
Financial liabilities included in S AE M EN OB K FEET
other payables and accruals ERNTHAEE - 4,334 2,531 6,865
Amount due to a director [ERN—REEFIEA 3 - - 3
16,871 4,868 2,540 24,279
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30. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are
to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders and retum capital to shareholders. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 30 June 2019 and
2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by the adjusted capital plus net debt. Net debt
includes trade payables, other payables and accruals, and an
amount due to a director less cash and cash equivalents. Capital
represents the equity attributable to owners of the Company.
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods are as
follows:

B REERAR AL

30 June 2019
—F-hAFARZTH

30. EREEEERBE &)

BEXER
AEEETEAEREIESARBAEE
RERREE - R RIB BRI 45 &
ERBARERIARIEE SR -

AEETRHEEALE R FE RSB R S
BFL AR - BEFIABRERLER &K
EEAESHABRKN FRENBRESER
HREERER - HE_T—HLhEFER_F
—NERNAZTHLEE  EBEAMNE
2 BRI EEREE -

AEEFEREERBLXRCFHEBRIALH
BERIFHER)EEEAR - FHEBEREE
ZEMNFIR - R ENRIE R ER &AM
BN —REEHE REREMASEE
Y o EREARBEE ARG - N
EMRNEERBLLRMT

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET

Trade payables & S E A 16,003 17,411
Other payables and accruals HibEN R IB R ETER 17,050 15,182
Amount due to a director B —RESFHIEA - 3
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W IREe RIEBESEED (174,651) (189,097)
Net debt FEE (141,598) (156,501)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 282 B A A E(L RS 299,214 289,690
Capital and net debt B R N SFER 157,616 133,189
Gearing ratio BEEAEBL N/A ~iE A N/A N3 R
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DIEC R

30 June 2019
—E-AFAAZTH

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 31. KA RMBEARRE

OF THE COMPANY

2019 2018
—F-nE T )F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FET
NON-CURRENT ASSET ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHBARZIEE 334,059 334,059
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments AT FOR - 76
Amount due from a subsidiary FEUW—EIM B A Rl IR 150,302 150,302
Bank balance IRITHESR 74 75
Total current assets MENEEAE 150,376 150,453
Net assets BEEE 484,435 484,512
EQUITY s
Share capital % 4,800 4,800
Reserves (note) R (KaE) 479,635 479,712
Total equity MR 484,435 484,512
Note: Bisr -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARIEERENAT -
Accumulated
Share premium losses Total
R RE HEtEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FAET
At 1 July 2017 R=ZT—tFtHA—H 334,059 = 334,059
Capitalisation issue of shares B BITRG (3,600) - (3,600)
Issue of new shares BEITHRAD 164,400 - 164,400
Share issue expenses B3 TRY (15,147) - (15,147)
At 30 June 2018 and 1 July 2018 RZZE—N\FAA=+HK
—T-N\FtHA—H 479,712 - 479,712
Profit and total comprehensive income FREFREE R
for the year - 19,123 19,123
Final dividend for 2018 —T— \FREKE = (14,400) (14,400)
Interim dlividend for 2019 —E-NERERE = (4,800) (4,800)
At 30 June 2019 RZZE—NFA=1H 479,712 77) 479,635

32. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 32, #{LEMKERER

STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 18 September 2019.

BBRREN-Z-NFAATNBKE
EEHERTETIE -
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